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To Our Shareholders

2004 again marked a difficult year for our business. Our loss of $46.0 million, or $0.77 per share,
reflects several non-operating charges: an $18.3 million write-down in the value of our NYSE seats, a
$55.9 million charge incurred in connection with the refinancing of our debt, a $37.6 million
write-down in goodwill and a preferred stock discount accretion charge of $0.5 million. In addition,
revenues included a $24.9 million gain on the sale of our investment in Lava Trading, Inc. Though
our lower revenue can be explained by several factors, we believe exceptionally low stock market
volatility resulted in fewer market imbalances and lower rates of specialist participation. We believe
that historically low interest rates helped contriburte to this low volatility, which in turn led to an
increase in strategies such as arbitrage-related program trading.

Our biggest charge last year came from a debt refinancing. We believe this refinancing,
however, put us in a better position to manage our capital and liquidity, as well as our financing costs.

There has been a good deal of news coverage about market structure, electronic trading and
the future of liquidity providers, such as LaBranche. Changes are coming in the method by which
orders are delivered to equity marketplaces. We believe that technology will allow for more direct
electronic access to the point of sale. Investors will be able to access liquidity with greater speed and
more certainty. Investors tell us that speedier, more certain executions are a priority for them.
With that in mind, we and major exchanges are working to accommodate investors and deliver the
best possible technology. The hybrid model currently proposed by the NYSE is part of this movement
and represents the next generation of electronic trading technology. It will transform some technolo-
gies which are now order delivery systems to electronic execution systems. This will give instant access
to displayed liquidity and speed up executions significantly. Investors will continue to benefit from

the price discovery provided by our markets.
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“We continue to strengthen our
position in the premier equity
related marketplaces.”

The principal advantages of a central auction market are liquidity and superior market
quality. Specialists at LaBranche play an important role in this process and make marker quality a top
priority. While we believe new systems and technologies will benefit investors, no new technology
can eliminate market imbalances. Dealing efficiently with imbalances is critical to enhancing
market quality and lowering trading costs. These will be the ultimate determining factors in the
competition among marketplaces for the customer’s order. What sets our markets apart from
all others is the combination of the best technology and human judgment through the affirmative
role of a Specialist.

We continue to strengthen our position in the premier equity-related marketplaces. We have
built an excellent execution platform for our customers at our LaBranche Financial Services
subsidiary. Over the past two years, we have significantly built up our options market-making
business and have established ourselves as a leading Specialist in Exchange Traded Funds, which we
believe will play an increasingly important role in our capital markets. The best companies in the
world continue to choose LaBranche to represent them as their Specialist. While the past two years
have been difficult, we continue to focus our strengths on positioning our company for growth and

maximizing your investment as a shareholder. We thank you for investing with us and look forward

o

Michael LaBranche
Chairman, President and CEO

to more favorable returns for our shareholders and partners.
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“We believe that human judgment, coupled with innovative
. . . . s »
technology, is the best combination for investors.

The Specialist’s primary
role is to provide
liquidity to the market,
keeping it fair and
orderly. Technological
advances have allowed
investors faster access

to this liquidity at

lower costs.

N
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e

“LaB¥anche is commisted to

echnological advances have had a profound effect on the way equities trade today.
Increasingly, investors and brokers are electronically linked directly to the point of sale. Electronic
linkages increase the amount of information available to market participants and allow more direct
access to the marketplace. The result is faster access to liquidity at lower cost. We anticipate
that increased electronic access to the marketplace will increase volumes. Further technological
improvements will continue to provide more certain and instant executions. More choices will
become available to brokers and investors.
LaBranche is committed to providing more choices in a changing marketplace. Our LaBranche

Financial Services division offers advanced electronic access to the equity markets. Our Specialist
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“The central aue ows all
investors, both large and small,
the opportunity to participate
at the best available price
regardless of order size.”

division supports enhancements in electronic connectivity which will come with the implementation
of the hybrid market. Our LaBranche Structured Products division links markets, both domestic and
foreign, creating deeper liquidity and efficient pricing in its many products.

The U.S. Equity market will continue to evolve with more electronic trading. Our Company
is committed to technological improvements and it is also committed to a central auction market that
best serves investors. The central auction allows all investors, both large and small, the opportunity
to participate at the best available price regardless of order size. We believe that human judgment,
coupled with innovative technology, is the best combination for investors. We also believe that
experienced Specialists and brokers using capital, judgment and technology will continue to make the

U.S. capital markets the most efficient in the world.
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“Technological improvements will continue to provide
~ more certain, instantaneous executions.”

NYSE AVERAGE DAILY SHARE VOLUME (miltions of shares)

TOTAL SHARE VOLUME ON THE NYSE
OF LaBRANCHE's SPECIALIST STOCKS (in bitlions)

102
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“The opportunity in ETFs is driven by investors’
recognition of their many advantages.”

In recent years,
LaBranche has expanded
into new product |
areas, including Exchange |
Traded Funds (ETFs) and
other derivative instruments.
These areas represent

growth opportunities
for LaBranche.

New Specialist Products
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we have become a markeé
maker on a2 number ‘
of exchanges.”

aBranche continues to expand its use of technology to support its Specialists’ trading activities
and to enhance the flow and timeliness of information to the exchange floors. We use technology to
monitor trading activity to assure our customers are getting the best execution.

New product areas are creating growth opportunities for LaBranche in a dynamic marketplace.
We are a leading Specialist in ETFs and a growing presence in other derivative instruments such as
futures and options. The opportunity in ETFs is driven by investors' recognition of their many
advantages — as a convenient alternative to mutual funds, as a way to broaden investments into new

asset classes, and as easily traded hedging instruments.
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“Our clients see us as a reliable
liquidity provider helping to lower

their customers’ trading costs.”

Our LaBranche Structured Products subsidiary has become a market-maker on a number of
exchanges across the U.S. including the American Stock Exchange, the New York Board of Trade, the
Chicago Board Options Exchange, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange, the Chicago Futures
Exchange, the Philadelphia Stock Exchange and the Pacific Stock Exchange. The market dynamics
of these exchanges have changed significantly and we continue to invest in communications,

technology and personnel. As a result, our clients see us as a reliable liquidity provider helping to lower

their customers’ trading costs.
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We continue to invest in communications, technology and personnel.
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LaBRANCHE NON-U.S. COMMON STOCK LISTINGS
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n 2004, LaBranche continued to win new
listed companies. We added 24 companies to our
client roster. Our total now stands at 580 NYSE
common stock listings. New listings include both
domestic and foreign companies ranging from
financial services, telecommunications and enter-
tainment to food services, construction products,
publishing and transportation. Our new business
development effort consists of educating potential
clients about the value of a U.S. listing as well as
the advantages of working with LaBranche.
LaBranche is also the leading NYSE Specialist
for foreign corporations. Our new listings
since January 1, 2004 are noted in bold on the
following pages.

Our clients appreciate the reduced volatili-
ty and quality of execution that we bring to the
trading of their shares and choose us for the
expertise of our professionals and the benefits of
working with one of the most highly capitalized
Specialist firms.

They also appreciate our value-added
services, both on and off the trading floor.
We provide our Specialists with ongoing monitor-
ing and assistance, and mobilize teams to handle
high volume situations as they arise. Our
Specialists also work with our Corporate
Relations department to keep our clients
informed of the trading activity in their shares
and to provide customized support for their
investor relations efforts. We hold conferences
and seminars for our listed companies. We also
make presentations to our clients’ management in
our ongoing commitment to keep our clients
informed of market developments and to main-

tain an open line of communication between our

Our Listed Companies

clients and us.




OUR LISTED COMPANIES

(As of March 8, 2005)

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE
COMMON STOCK LISTINGS

MMM
KDE
ABB

APN
AlIT

ASN

AGO

ATO
ANZ

AV
AVY
BEZ
BBV
BCH
ITU
SAN
CIB
BOH

BMO
BN
ABX
BOL

3M Company

4Kids Entertainment, Inc.

ABB Limited

ABN AMRO Holding N.V.

ACM Income Fund, Inc.

Actuant Corp.

Adams Express Company (The)
Adecco S.A.

Administaff, Inc.

Advance Auto Parts, Inc.

Advanced Marketing Services, Inc.
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.
Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc.
AGCO Corp.

Agere Systems Inc.-Class A

Agere Systems Inc.-Class B

Agilent Technologies, Inc.

AIM Select Real Estate Income Fund
Alaska Air Group, Inc.

Albany International Corp.
Alexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc.
Alleghany Corporation

Allergan, Inc.

ALLETE, Inc.

Alliance World Dollar Government
Fund 11, Inc.

Alliant Techsystems Inc.

Allied Domecq plc

Allmerica Financial Corporation
Alrria Group, Inc.

Aluminum Corporation of China
America West Holdings Corporation
American Electric Power Company
American Express Company
American Financial Group, Inc.
American Financial Realty Trust
American Realty Investors, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Corporation
AMLI Residential Properties Trust
Applica Incorporated

Applied Industrial Technologies, Inc.
Archer-Daniels-Midland Company
Archstone-Smith Trust

Arden Realcy Group, Inc.

Assured Guaranty Ltd.

AT&T Corp.

Armos Energy Corporation
Australia & New Zealand Banking Group, Ltd.
Autoliv Inc.

Avaya Inc.

Avery Dennison Corporation
Baldor Electric Company

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria S.A.
Banco de Chile

Banco ltau Holding Financeira S.A.
Banco SantanderSantiago
Bancolombia S.A.

Bank of Hawaii Corporation

Bank of Ireland

Bank of Montreal

Banta Corporation

Barrick Gold Corporation

Bausch & Lomb Inc.

BDC
BMS
BNG
BER
BRK/A
BRK/B
BRY
BJ
BSD
BBI
BBI/B
BLT
BMC
BWA
BTF
BOY
BRP
BTM
BRE
BMY
BRO
BWS
BF/A
BF/B
BPL
CWP
CAl
CDN
CPT
COF
CSuU

CAE
CLS
CX
CTX
CKP
CSK
CHK
CvX
LFC
CN
SNP
CHA
CHZ
Cl
CIN
cC
CIT
CZN
CLK
CCu
CNH
CIF
CMA
FIX
CFB
CTV
GGY
ABV

ABV/C
SBS

CIG

Belden CDT Inc.

Bemis Company, Inc.

Benerton Group S.p.A

Berkley (W.R.) Corporation

Berkshire Hathaway, Inc.- Class A
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc.- Class B

Berry Petroleumn Company

BJ's Wholesale Club, Inc.

BlackRock Strategic Municipal Trust (The)
Blockbuster Inc.-Class A

Blockbuster Inc.-Class B

Blount International, Inc.

BMC Software, Inc.

Borg Warner Inc.

Boulder Total Rerurn Fund, Inc.

Boykin Lodging Company

Brasil Telecom Participacoes S5.A.

Brasil Telecom S.A.

BRE Properties, Inc.

Bristol-Myers Squibb Company

Brown & Brown, Inc.

Brown Shoe Company, Inc.
Brown-Forman Corp.- Class A
Brown-Forman Corp.- Class B

Buckeye Parmers, L.I.

Cable and Wireless plc

CACI International Inc.

Cadence Design Systems, Inc,

Camden Propercy Trust

Capital One Financial Corporation
Capital Senior Living Corporation
CarMax, Inc.

Cascade Corporation

Celestica Inc.

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.

Centex Corporation

Checkpoint Systems, Inc.

Chesapeake Corporation

Chesapeake Energy Corporation
Chevron Texaco Corporation

China Life Insurance Company Limited
China Netcom Group Corp Ltd
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
China Telecommunications Corporation
Chittenden Corporation

Cigna Corporation

Cinergy Corp.

Circuit City Stores, Inc.

CIT Group, Inc.

Citizens Communications Company
Clark, Inc.

Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
CNH Global N.V.

Colonial Intermediate High Income Fund
Comerica Incorporated

Comfort Systems USA Inc.

Commercial Federal Corporation
CommScope, Inc.

Compagnie Generale de Geophysique S.A.
Companhia de Bebidas Das Americas-
Preference ADR

Companhia de Bebidas Das Americas-ADR
Companhia de Sancamento Bascio do Estado
de Sao Paulo-SABESP

Companhia Energetica de Minas Gerais

13 LaBranche & Co Inc.

CTC

ELP
csc
CIX
CFD
cGx
CAL
Ccoo
CPO
CRN
coy
CPV
CJR
coT
cuz
CcvH
CPL
CR
CRD/A
CRD/B
CIK

CRO
CsX
CFR
Cvs
DCX
DF
DGF
DAL
DEL
DES
DEX
DEO
DLR
DYS
DLB
DG
DPZ
D]
DHF
DSM
LEO
DST
DTE
DRE
DD
DQE
EHP

EXP/B
NGT
EMN
EK
ECR
ECL
ELK
ER]
ETF

EMR
ICA
ELE

2004 Annual Report

Compania de Telecommunicaciones

de Chile S.A.

Compania Paranaense de Energia-COPEL
Computer Sciences Corporation
CompX lnternational Inc.

40/86 Strategic Income Fund
Consolidated Graphics, Inc.
Continental Airlines, Inc.

Cooper Companies, Inc.

Corn Products International, Inc.
Cornell Companies, Inc.

Corporate High Yield Fund
Correctional Properties Trust

Corus Entertainment Inc.

Cott Corporation

Cousins Properties Inc.

Coventry Health Care

CPFL Energia S.A.

Crane Co.

Crawford & Company- Class A
Crawford & Company- Class B

Credit Suisse Asser Management
Income Fund, Inc.

Crompton Corporation

CRT Properties, Inc.

CSX Corporation

Cullen/Frost Bankers, Inc.

CVS Corporation

DaimlerChrysler AG

Dean Foods Company

Delaware Investments Global Div. & Inc. Fund
Delea Air Lines, Inc.

Deltic Timber Corporation
Department 56, Inc.

Dex Media, Inc.

Diageo plc

Digital Realty Trust, Inc.

Distribucion Y Servicio D&S S.A.
Dolby Laboratories, Inc.

Dollar General Corporation

Domino’s Pizza, Inc.

Dow Jones & Company, Inc.

Dreyfus High Yield Strategies Fund
Dreyfus Strategic Municipal Bond Fund, Inc.
Dreyfus Strategic Municipals, Inc.

DST Systems, Inc.

DTE Energy Company

Duke Realty Corporation

E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company
Duguesne Light Holdings Inc.

Eagle Hospitality Properties Trust, Inc.
Eagle Materials, Inc.

Eagle Materials, Inc.-Class B

Eastern American Natural Gas Trust
Eastman Chemical Company

Eastman Kodak Company

ECC Capital Corp.

Ecolab, Inc.

ElkCorp

Embraer Empresa Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A.
Emerging Markets Telecommunications
Fund, Inc.

Emerson Electric Co.

Empresas ICA Sociedad Controladora
Endesa, S.A.
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EN

EBF
ETR
ENZ
ENT
EQT
EQS
ESS
EL

XJT
EXE
XOM
FDS

FRP
FIC
FRT
FsS
FII
FPT

FMN
FMP
FDC
FF

FHN
FMD
FUR

PFD
PFO

FLE
FLS
FNB

FOX
FRE
FBR

FUL
GPS
GCO
GGI
GGC
GNA
GGB
GER
GTY
GSK
GLB
GHI
GPN
GFI
GT
GOT
GPP
GGG
GVA
GPK
GTN
GTN/A
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Enel S.p.A.

Eni S.PA.

Ennis, Inc,

Entergy Corporation

Enzo Biochem, Inc.

Equant N.V.

Equitable Resources, Inc.

Equus II Incorporated

Essex Property Trust, Inc.

Estee Lauder Companies Inc. (The)
Exelon Corporation

Express]et Holdings, Inc.

Extendicare, Inc.- Class A

Exxon Mobil Corporation

FactSet Research Systems, Inc.

Fairfax Financial Holdings Lid
FairPoint Communications, Inc.
Fair Isaac, Corp.

Federal Realty Investment Trust
Federal Signal Corporation

Federated Investors, Inc.

Federated Premiet Intermediate Muni.
Income Fund

Federated Premier Municipal Income Fund
Feldman Mall Properties, Inc.

First Data Corp.

First Financial Fund, Inc.

First Horizon National Corporation
First Mablehead Corporation

First Union Real Estate Equity &
Morigage Investments

Flaherty & Crumrine Preferred
Income Fund, Inc.

Flaherty & Crumrine Preferred Income
Opportunicy Fund, Inc.

Fleetwood Enterprises, Inc.

Flowserve Corporation

EN.B. Corporation

Ford Motor Corp.

Fox Entertainmerit Group, Inc.
Freddie Mac

Friedman, Billings, Ramsey Group, Inc.-
Class A

Fuller (H.B.) Company

Gap, Inc. (The)

Genesco Inc.

GEO Group, Inc: {The)

Georgia Gulf Corp.

Gerdau Ameristeel Corporation
Gerdau S.A.

Germany Fund, Inc.

Getty Realty Corp.

GlaxoSmithKline ple

Glenborough Realty Trust Incorporated
Global High Income Dollar Fund, Inc.
Global Payments Inc.

Gold Fields Limited

Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company (The)
Gottschalks, Inc.'

Government Properties Trust, Inc.
Graco Inc.

Granite Construction Incorporated
Graphic Packaging Corporation

Gray Television, Inec.

Gray Television, Inc.- Class A

GFR
GLK
GNI
GXP
GMP
ASR
MY

GSH
HRB
HNZ

JH
HSC
HIG
HVT
HVT/A
HE
HCC
HR
HXL
HIH
HRH
HBC
HNP
HYC
HTR
IEX
IMN
IBA
IFS
ING
IES

IRS
JEC
JEF
JEC
jcc
LG
JAS
PPF
JWIA
JW/B
JLL
JRC

KSL
KCS

KCI
KGC

PHG

KUB

Great American Financial Resources, Inc.
Great Lakes Chemical Corp.

Great Northern Iron Ore Properties
Great Plains Energy Incorporated
Green Mountain Power Corporation
Grupo Aeroportuario del Sureste, S.A. de C.V.
Grupo Imsa, S.A. de C.V.

Grupo Televisa, S.A.

Guangshen Railway Company Limited
H&R Block, Inc.

H.J. Heinz Company

Haemonetics Corporation

Halliburton Co.

Harland (John H.) Co.

Harsco Corporation

Hareford Financial Services Group, Inc.
Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc.
Haverty Furniture Companies, Inc.- Class A
Hawaiian Electric Industries, Inc.

HCC Insurance Holdings, Inc.
Healthcare Realry Trust

Hexcel Corporation

Highland Hospitality Corporation
Hilb, Rogal & Hobbs Company
HSBC Holdings plc

Huaneng Power International, Inc.
Hypercom Corporation

Hyperion Total Return Fund, Inc.
IDEX Corporation

Imation Corp.

Industrias Bachoco S.A. de C.V.
Infrasource Services, Inc.

ING Groep N.V.

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
International Aluminum Corp.

Towa Telecommunications Services, Inc.
IRSA Inversiones Y Representaciones S.A.
Jacobs Engineering Group Incorporated
Jefferies Group, Inc.

JF China Region Fund, Inc.

Jilin Chemical Industrial Co. Ltd.

JLG Industries, Inc.

Jo-Ann Stores, Inc

John Hancock Patriot Preferred Dividend Fund
John Wiley & Sons, Inc.- Class A

John Wiley & Sons, Inc.- Class B

Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated
Journal Register Company

Kaneb Pipeline Partners, L.P

Kaneb Services LLC

KCS Energy, Inc.

Kellwood Co.

Kerzner International Limited

Kinetic Concepts, Inc.

Kinross Gold Corp.

Knight Transportation, Inc.

Konami Corp.

Royal Philips Electronics N.V.
Kookmin Bank

Korn/Ferry International

Kraft Foods Inc.

Krispy Kreme Doughnurs, Inc.

Kroger Co. (The)

Kronos Worldwide, Inc.

Kubota Corporation

LQI
LRW
LEL
LHO
LaQ
LEE
LBC

LEH
LIl

LNN
LIN
LGF
LYG
LDG
LOwW
LU
LYO
MTB
MRD
TUC
MTA
MHY
MMU
HCR

MTZ
MXO

MHS
MDT
MRK
MCY
MDP
TMR
MSB

MXE
MFI

Mz
MLR
OOM
MIL
MHK
TAP
TAP/A
MGI
MRH
MOG/A
MOG/B

1ic
MsD
MGB
ICB
IMB

OIC

IQN

La Quinta Corporation

Labor Ready, Inc.

Lan Airlines S.A.

LaSalle Hotel Properties

Latin American Equity Fund, Inc. (The)
Lee Enterprises, Incorporated

Lehman Brothers/First Trust Income
Opportunity Fund

Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc.
Lennox International, Inc.

Lexington Corporare Properties Trust
Lindsay Manufacturing Co.

Linens ‘n Things, Inc.

Lion’s Gate Entertainment Corp
Lloyds TSB Group plc

Longs Drug Stores, Inc.

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.

Lucent Technologies Inc.

Lyondell Chemical Company

M&T Bank Corporation

MacDermid, Incorporated

Mac-Gray Corporation

Magyar Tavkozlesi RT (“MATAV”)
Managed High Income Portfolio Inc.
Managed Municipals Portfolio Inc.
Manor Care, Inc.

Manpower Inc.

MasTec, Inc.

Maxtor Corporation

MeadWestvaco Corporation

Medco Health Solutions, Inc.
Medtronic, Inc.

Merck & Co., Inc.

Mercury General Corp.

Meredith Corp.

Meridian Resource Corporation (The)
Mesabi Trust CTES

Metso Corporation

Mexico Equity and Income Fund, Inc. (The)
MicroFinancial Inc.

Mid-America Apartment Communities, Inc.
Milacron Inc.

Miller Industries, Inc.

mmQ2 Ple

Millipore Corporation

Mohawk Industries, Inc.

Molson Coors Brewing Co. — Class B
Molson Coors Brewing Co. — Class A
MoneyGram International, Inc.
Montepelier RE Holdings Led

Moog Inc. -Class A

Moog Inc. -Class B

Morgan Stanley

Morgan Stanley California Insured
Income Trust

Morgan Stanley Emerging Markets
Debt Fund, Inc.

Morgan Stanley Global Opportunicy
Bond Fund, Inc.

Morgan Stanley Income Securities
Morgan Stanley Insured Municipal Bond Trust
Morgan Stanley Muni Income Opportunity
Trust IIT

Morgan Stanley NY Qualiry
Municipal Securities




QT

MOS
MHE
MVT
MIY
MQT
MUR
MYK
MYL
NAB
NDC
NAL
IRL
NXL
NYB
NWS
NWS/A
NKE
NTT
NI
NIS
NL
NE
NBL
NOK
NMR
NTL
NVS

NUS
NUE
NXC

NNC
NNJ

(o]}
OCA
oDP
OGE
OMM
OCR
OFG
PRE
POG
PDX
PNN
PVR
PVA
PBG
PBT
PZE
PTR
POB

PHI
PVH
PIR
RCS

PT
PPG
PCP

Morgan Stanley Quality Municipal
Investment Trust

Mosaic Company (The)

Municipal High Income Fund, Inc.
MuniVest Fund 11, Inc.

MuniYield Michigan Insured Fund Inc.
MuniYield Quality Fund II Inc.
Murphy Oil Corp.

Mykrolis Corporation

Mylan Laboratories Inc.

Narional Australia Bank, Led.
NDCHealth Corporation

NewAlliance Bancshares, Inc.

New Ireland Fund, Inc. (The)

New Plan Excel Realty Trust Inc.

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
News Corporation Limited (The)

News Corporation Limited-Voting (The)
Nike, Inc.

Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corporation
NiSource Inc.

Nissin Co., Lid.

NL Industries, Inc.

Noble Corporation

Noble Energy, Inc.

Nokia Corporation

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

Nortel Inversora S.A.

Novartis AG

Novelis Inc.

Nu Skin Enterprises, Inc.

Nucor Corporation

Nuveen California Select Tax-Free
Income Portfolio

Nuveen NC Premium Income Municipal Fund
Nuveen NJ Premium Income
Municipal Fund, Inc.

Nuveen Select Tax Free Income Portfolio
Oakley Inc.

QCA, Inc.

Office Depot, Inc.

OGE Energy Corp.

OMI Corporation

Omnicare, Inc.

Oriental Financial Group, Inc.
PartnerRe Ltd.

Patina Oil & Gas Corporation
Pediatrix Medical Group, Inc.

Penn Engineering & Manufacturing Corp.
Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.
Penn Virginia Corporation

Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Permain Basin Royalty Trust

Petrobras Energia Participaciones S.A.
PetroChina Company Limited
Philadelphia Authority for

Industrial Development

Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co.
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation

Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

PIMCO Strategic Global Government
Fund, Inc.

Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A.

PPG Industries, Inc.

Precision Castparts Corp.

PRS
PLD
PES
PRV
PEG
PUB
PTM
PMO
PWR
QW
STR
1Q

RDN
RIT

RIN
ROG

KPN
RYL
MNP
SFP
ST
M1
SNY
SSL
SBC
SGP
SLB
SPI
LBE
SAF
STX
SJR
SKO
SRP
SPG
SHI
SIR
PKS
SKX
SNN
AOS
SAH
BID
SJ1
$S8
SRX
ST)
STT
LVB
SLH
SU
STI
SBL
SMA

TSM

TCO
CVT
BNK
TLD

Primus Guaranty Limited

ProLogis

Provident Financial Services, Inc.
Province Healthcare Company

Public Service Enterprise Group Incorporated
Publicis Group S.A.

Putnam Managed High Yield Trusc
Putnam Municipal Opportunities Trust
Quanta Services, Inc.

Quebecor World Inc.

Questar Corporation

Quinenco, S.A.

Qwest Communications International
Radian Group, Inc.

Range Resources Corporation

Real Estare Income Fund Inc.
Regions Financial Corp.

Rinker Group Led.

Rogers Corporation

RR Donnelley & Sons Co.

Royal KPN N.V.

Ryland Group, Inc. (The)

Salomon Brothers Municipal Partners Fund Inc.
Salton, Inc.

San Juan Basin Royalty Trust
Sanpaolo IMI S.p.A.

Sanofi-Aventis

Sasol Limited

SBC Communications Inc.
Schering-Plough Corp.

Schlumberger Limiced

Scottish Power plc

Scudder Global High Income Fund
Scudder New Asia Fund, Inc.

Seagate Technology

Shaw Communicarions Inc.

ShopKo Stores, Inc.

Sierra Pacific Resources

Simon Property Group, Inc.

Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Co. Lid.
SIRVA, Inc.

Six Flags, Inc.

Skechers U.S.A., Inc.

Smith & Nephew ple

Smith (A.O.) Corporation

Sonic Automotive, Inc.

Sotheby’s Holdings, Inc.

South Jersey Industries, Inc.

Sovran Self Storage, Inc.

SRA International, Inc.

St. Jude Medical, Inc.

State Street Corporation

Steinway Musical Instruments, Inc.
Strategic Hotel Capiral, Inc.

Suncor Energy Inc.

SunTrust Banks, Inc.

Symbol Technologies, Inc.

Symmetry Medical, Inc.

Taiwan Fund, Inc.

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company Ltd.

Taubman Centers, Inc.

TCW Convertible Securities Fund, Inc.
TD Banknorth Inc.

TDC A/S
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TOA
TKP
TRO
TBE
TNE
TSD
TEO
TSP
TFX
TAR
TMX
TMB
TCP
TU
GIM
TRF

TS
TXI
TPL
TGX
TNB
TNM
TNM/B
TSU
TIX
TOT
™
TP
TAC
TRB
TZA

TSN
USB
UIL
UB
UDR
UMC
urs
UHT
UHS
UTI
UNM
UPM
VCI

VCG

vQC
VKQ
VNM
VAR
VIA/B
VvIP
e

VvCP
WNC
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and
results of operations together with the financial statements and the notes
to such statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statements based on our current
expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about us and our
industry. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertain-
ties including, but not limited to those discussed in “Risk Factors” set
forth in ltem 1 of our Form 10-K. Our actual results could differ mate-
rially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of certain factors. We undertake no obligation to update publicly
any forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information
becomes available or other events occur in the future.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we reported a loss of
$46.0 million, or $0.77 per share, which included a $24.9 million
gain on the sale of our investment in Lava Trading, Inc., an
exchange membership impairment charge of $18.3 million, a debt
repurchase charge of $55.9 million, a goodwill impairment charge
of $37.6 million and a preferred stock discount accretion charge of
$0.5 million. Excluding the Lava sale and the exchange member-
ship impairment, debt repurchase, goodwill impairment charges
and preferred stock discount accretion, our net income available to
common stockholders for the full year 2004 was $16.5 million, or
$0.27 per diluted share.

The key drivers that contributed to the decreased revenues at our
NYSE equity specialist subsidiary for 2004 included declining prin-
cipal share volume and dollar value traded, lower market volatility
and an increasing rate of program trading as a percentage of total
trading volume on the NYSE. The decline in market volatility and
rise in program trading resulted in fewer market imbalances, which
lowered our rate of capital participation. Although this caused a
19.3% decrease in principal trading revenues at our LaBranche &
Co. LLC subsidiary in.2004 versus 2003, our LSP and LSPS sub-
sidiaries’ principal trading revenues grew 95.3% through expansion
into new marketplaces and diversification of its specialist and
market-making product offerings.

Throughout 2004, we continued to improve operational efficiencies
by reducing headcount and related operating expenses and further
enhancing our compliance and trading systems. We believe these
changes have streamlinied our organization without sacrificing our
ability to respond to developments in the marketplace. If imple-
mented, we anticipate that the NYSE’s proposed changes to its
automated trade execution system and the SEC’s proposed market
structure changes will provide more challenges. We are confident
that our organization will successfully adapt to meet its future needs.

During 2004, we successfully completed a refinancing of certain of
our indebtedness by repurchasing a substantial portion of our then-
outstanding senior and senior subordinated notes and issuing
$460.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.5% senior notes

due 2009 (the “Original 2009 Notes”) and 11.0% senior notes due
2012 (the “Original 2012 Notes” and collectively with the Original
2009 Notes, the “Original Senior Notes”). Although this refinanc-
ing increased the aggregate principal amount of our outstanding
indebtedness, the interest rates on the Original Senior Notes and
the third-quarter repurchase of all remaining shares of our out-
standing Series B preferred stock with a portion of the proceeds of
the Original Senior Notes issuance have enabled us to extend the
maturities of our debt without increasing our overall combined
after-tax annual interest and dividends expense.

On March 29, 2004, we entered into an agreement with the NYSE
and the SEC to settle their investigations concerning our NYSE spe-
cialist trading activity. This settlement resolved the NYSE and the
SEC investigations of our NYSE specialist trading activity for all
periods through 2003. As part of the settlement with the NYSE and
the SEC, we have agreed to comply with the following undertakings:

- implementation of systems and procedures to ensure appropriate
follow-up and review with regard to information provided to
LaBranche & Co. LLC on a daily basis by the NYSE with regard
to specialists’ override of the Principal Inhibitor function, which
identifies specialist principal trades that may have been effected
while an executable agency order was reflected in the order book
on the same side of the market;

creation of a committee, including LaBranche & Co. LLC’s chief

compliance officer and at least two members of senior manage-
ment, specifically charged with meeting periodically (no less fre-
quently than monthly) to evaluate specialist rule compliance;

- development and/or enhancement of systems and procedures to
track and maintain records identifying the individuals acting as
specialist and clerk for each security at all times throughout each
trading day;

. annual certification, through LaBranche & Co. LLC’s chief execu-
tive officer, that a review has been conducted by the chief compli-
ance officer of trading in LaBranche & Co. LLC'’s principal
account for the purpose of detecting interpositioning, trading
ahead and unexecuted limit order violations;

« bi-annual assessment of, and reports on, the adequacy of the
resources devoted to LaBranche & Co. LLC’s compliance func-
tion, and devotion of adequate funds and staffing to the compli-
ance department; and

. retention of an independent consultant to review and evaluate
LaBranche & Co. LLC’s compliance systems, policies and proce-
dures reasonably designed to ensure that LaBranche & Co. LLC is
in compliance with federal securities laws and NYSE rules with
regard to specialist trading.

We are complying with these undertakings and do not expect these
changes or enhancements to adversely affect our principal trading
revenues. Instead, our fulfillment of these undertakings should
enhance our risk management activities related to our specialist
trading activity.




NEW ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46(R), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, An Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” FIN
46(R) requires a company to consolidate a variable interest entity
(“VIE”) if the company has variable interests that give it a majority
of the expected losses or a majority of the expected residual returns,
or both, of the entity. FIN 46(R) was effective no later than the end
of the first reporting period that ended after March 15, 2004. As of
December 31, 2004, we have determined that none of our invest-
ments are considered a VIE under the guidance provided in FIN
46(R), and therefore, the implementation of FIN 46(R) has had no

impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” SFAS No. 123(R),
“Share Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) will require compensa-
tion costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recog-
nized in the financial statements over the period that an employee
provides service in exchange for the award. SFAS No. 123(R)
replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 123(R) will
be effective for our third quarter of fiscal 2005. We are currently
evaluating the effect of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), but we do
not expect it to have a material effect on our financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets We determine the fair value
of each of our reporting units and the fair value of each reporting
unit’s goodwill under the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” In determining fair value, we use standard ana-
lytical approaches to business enterprise valuation (“BEV?), such as
the market comparable approach and the income approach. The
marker comparable approach is based on comparisons of the subject
company to similar companies engaged in an actual merger or
acquisition or to public companies whose stocks are actively traded.
As part of this process, multiples of value relative to financial vari-
ables, such as earnings or stockholders’ equity, are developed and
applied to the appropriate financial variables of the subject com-
pany to indicate its value. The income approach involves estimating
the present value of the subject company’s future cash flows by
using projections of the cash flows that the business is expected to
generate, and discounting these cash flows at a given rate of return.
Each of these BEV methodologies requires the use of management
estimates and assumptions. For example, under the market compa-
rable approach, we assigned a certain control premium ro the public
market price of our common stock as of the valuation date of our
2004 third quarter impairment test, as well as our 2004 year-end
impairment test, in estimating the fair value of our specialist report-
ing unit. Similarly, under the income approach, we assumed certain
growth rates for our revenues, expenses, earnings before interest,
income taxes, depreciation and amortization, returns on working
capital, returns on other assets and capital expenditures, among
others. We also assumed certain discount rates and certain terminal
growth rates in our calculations. For our third quarter and year-end
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2004 goodwill impairment tests, we engaged an independent busi-
ness valuation firm to assist us in our BEV analyses. Given the sub-
jectivity involved in selecting which BEV approach to use and in
determining the input variables for use in our analyses, it is possible
thar a different valuation model and the selection of different input
variables could produce a materially different estimate of fair value
of our goodwill.

Wee review the reasonableness of the carrying value of our goodwill
on an annual calendar basis (i.e., December 31) unless an event or
change in circumstances would require an interim reassessment of
impairment. During the nine months ended September 30, 2004,
certain changes in circumstances occurred, which management
believed necessitated goodwill impairment testing. The two pri-
mary factors we analyzed, which indicated a need for us to reassess
the reasonableness of the carrying value of our goodwill at Septem-
ber 30, 2004, were the prolonged downward trend in our principal
trading revenues at our Specialist reporting unit and the continued
decline in the public trading price of our common stock through
September 30, 2004. In our third quarter 2004 SFAS No. 142 test,
we compared the fair value of our Specialist reporting unit and the
fair value of our Specialist reporting unit’s goodwill—based on the
methods described above—to their respective carrying values in
two separate steps under SFAS No. 142 guidelines to arrive at the
$37.6 million impairment charge we recognized during the third
quarter. Notwithstanding our interim valuation of goodwill as of
September 30, 2004, SFAS No. 142 requires us to test goodwill on
an annual calendar basis. Accordingly, we updated our valuation
models through and including our annual testing date, or Decem-
ber 31, 2004, and noted no further impairment of our goodwill. We
cannot provide assurance that future goodwill impairment testing
will not result in impairment charges in subsequent periods.

Our other intangible asset, as defined under SFAS No. 142, is our
trade name. We determine the fair value of our trade name by
applying the income approach using the royalty savings methodol-
ogy. This method assumes that the trade name has value to the
extent we are relieved of the obligation to pay royalties for the bene-
fits received from it. Application of this methodology requires esti-
mating an appropriate royalty rate, which is typically expressed as a
percentage of revenue. Estimating an appropriate royalty rate
includes reviewing evidence from comparable licensing agreements
and considering qualitative factors affecting the trade name. Given
the subjectivity involved in selecting which BEV approach to use
and in determining the input variables for use in our analyses, it is
possible thart a different valuation modef and the selection of differ-
ent input variables could produce a materially different estimare of
fair value of our trade name.

We review the reasonableness of the carrying amount of our trade
name on an annual basis in conjunction with our goodwill impair-
ment assessment. As of September 30, 2004, the fair value of our
trade name—determined in accordance with the methodology
described above—exceeded its carrying amount. During our 2004
fiscal fourch quarter, no events or changes in circumstances
occurred that required us to reassess the fair value of our trade
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name. Therefore, no impairment of our trade name exists at
December 31, 2004. We cannot provide assurance that future trade
name impairment testing will not result in impairment charges in
subsequent periods.

Non-Marketable Securities The use of fair value to measure cer-
tain non-marketable investments is a critical accounting estimate.
Investments in non-marketable securities consist of investments in
equity securities of private companies, limited liability company
interests and limited partnership interests, which do not have
readily available price quotations. Certain investments in non-
marketable securities are initially carried at cost, as an approxima-
tion of fair value. Adjustments to carrying value are made if there
are third-party transactions evidencing a change in value. For cer-
tain other investments in non-marketable securities, we adjust their
carrying value by applying the equity method of accounting, and
for our investment ini a limited partnership interest, we adjust its
carrying value by recognizing our share of the partnership’s quar-
terly results of operations. In addition, if and when available, man-
agement considers other relevant factors relating to non-marketable
investments in estimating their fair value, such as che financial
performance of the entity, its cash flow forecasts, trends within

that entity’s industry and any specific rights associated with our
investment—such asiconversion features—among others.

Given management’s judgment involved in valuing certain of our
non-marketable securities, it is possible, as of a given point in time,
that a third-party could reach a different conclusion of fair value
utilizing the same variables as we have in our analysis.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Exchange Memberships
The determination of the fair value of our exchange memberships is
a critical accounting estimate. Exchange memberships owned by us
are originally carried at cost, pursuant to the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) Audit and Accounting
Guide— Brokers and Dealers in Securities. Adjustments to carrying
value are made if we deem that an “other-than-temporary” decline
in value, as defined in Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue
No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and
Irs Application to Certain Investments, and in Section M of Topic 5 of
the SEC staff accounting bulletin series (“SAB No. 59”), has
occurred. In determining whether the value of our owned exchange
memberships is impaired (i.e., fair market value is below cost) and
whether such impairment is temporary or other-than-temporary,
we consider many factors, including, but not limited to, informa-
tion regarding recent sale and lease prices of exchange member-
ships, historical trends of sale and lease prices of memberships on a
particular exchange and their duration, the current condition of the
particular exchange’s market structure, legal and regulatory devel-
opments affecting the particular exchange’s market structure and
earnings capability, trends in new listings on the particular
exchange, general global and national economic factors and our
knowledge and judgment of the specialist and execution and clear-
ing industries and the securities market as a whole.

As a result of our analysis of the above-mentioned factors for the
three and six month periods ended December 31, 2004, the differ-
ence between the fair value of our NYSE exchange memberships
and their carrying value at December 31, 2004 is deemed tempo-
rary. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, we
recorded other-than-temporary impairment charges of $18.3 mil-
lion and $0.5 million, respectively, to reduce the carrying value (or

cost basis) of our NYSE (fiscal 2004) and AMEX (fiscal 2003)

exchange memberships.

We cannot provide assurance that the consistent application of this
accounting policy to future reporting periods will not result in fur-
ther adjustments to the carrying value of our exchange memberships.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

LFSI, through the normal course of business, enters into various
securities transactions as agent. The execution, settlement and
financing of these transactions can result in off-balance sheet risk
and concentration of credir risk. LEST’s execution and clearing
activities involve sertlement and financing of various customer secu-
rities transactions on a cash or margin basis. These activities may
expose LESI to off-balance sheet risk in the event the customer or
other broker is unable to fulfill its contractual obligations and LFSI
has to purchase or sell securities at a loss. For margin transactions,
LESI may be exposed to significant off-balance sheet risk in the
event margin requirements are not sufficient to fully cover losses
that customers may incur in their accounts.

MAY 2004 REFINANCING OF OUR INDEBTEDNESS

On May 18, 2004, in connection with the refinancing of certain of
our indebtedness, we repurchased approximately $93.1 million of
our then-outstanding $100.0 million aggregate principal amount
9.5% senior notes due 2004 (the “2004 Notes”) and approximately
$236.4 million of our then-outstanding $250.0 million aggregate
principal amount 12.0% senior subordinated notes due 2007

(the “2007 Notes” and, together with the 2004 Notes, the “Old
Notes”), and paid for related consents delivered by the holders

of the Old Notes on or prior to April 19, 2004. The aggregate
purchase price we paid for the Old Notes was approximately
$386.9 million, which included the purchase price, premium and
consent payments of approximately $49.0 million and accrued

but unpaid interest on the Old Notes up to, but not including,

the settlement date. Upon the completion of this refinancing, the
indentures governing the remaining outstanding Old Notes were
stripped of substantially all restrictive covenants, certain events

of default and other related provisions.

In order to fund the repurchase of the Old Notes, we issued the
Original Senior Notes. The indenture governing the Original
Senior Notes contains provisions similar to the indentures that gov-
erned the Old Notes prior to their amendment. For a more com-
plete description of the restrictive covenants in the indenture
governing the Original Senior Notes, please see “—Liquidity and
Capital Resources.”



In connection with our purchase of the Old Notes and our payment
for the related consents that were delivered on or prior to April 19,
2004, we recorded a charge of approximately $55.9 million in the
second quarter of 2004 for premium and consent payments, accel-
erated debt issuance cost amortization and discount accretion and
other related fees. In connection with the issuance of the Original
Senior Notes, we capiralized certain costs in the aggregate amount
of approximately $12.7 million, and are amortizing these costs over
the life of these notes.

REPAYMENT OF REMAINING 2004 NOTES

On August 16, 2004, we repaid the $6.9 million aggregate principal
amount of 2004 Notes that remained outstanding after our May
2004 refinancing, plus all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, for
an aggregate of $7.2 million. No 2004 Notes remain outstanding
and the indenture governing the 2004 Notes was terminated.

COMPLETED EXCHANGE OFFER

On September 10, 2004, pursuant to a registration rights agreement
between the initial purchaser of the Original Senior Notes and us,
we offered to exchange (i) our 9.5% Senior Notes due 2009 that
have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “2009 Senior Notes™), for an equal principal amount of out-
standing Original 2009 Notes and (ii) our 11.0% Senior Notes due
2012 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “2012 Senior Notes,” and together with the 2009
Senior Notes, the “Senior Notes”), for an equal principal amount of
outstanding Original 2012 Notes.

The exchange offer expired on October 22, 2004, with the holders
of 98.5%, or $197.0 million aggregate principal amount, of Original
2009 Notes having tendered their Original 2009 Notes for
exchange, and the holders 0of 100.0%, or $260.0 million aggregate
principal amount, of the Original 2012 Notes having tendered

their Original 2012 Notes for exchange. The Senior Notes represent
the same indebtedness as the Original Senior Notes that were
exchanged and have been issued under the same indenture. All
subsequent references in this Report to the term “2009 Senior
Notes” shall include the $3.0 million principal amount of Original
2009 Notes that were not tendered in the exchange offer and
remain outstanding.

COMPLETED EXCESS PROCEEDS OFFER

To the extent we did not use the net proceeds of the sale of the
Original Senior Notes to repurchase Old Notes in connection with
the May 2004 debt refinancing, repurchase the then-outstanding
shares of our Series B preferred stock before September 15, 2004
and pay related fees and expenses, the Senior Notes indenture
required us to offer to use such “excess proceeds” to repurchase an
equal principal amount of Senior Notes at a price of 101.0%, on a
pro rata basis.
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Based on the aggregate principal amount of Old Notes that we
repurchased in May 2004, the repurchase of our Series B preferred
stock in July 2004 (see “—Completed Preferred Stock Exchange
Offer and Subsequent Repurchase”) and the fees and expenses
incurred in connection therewith, the “excess proceeds” amount
was approximately $18.2 million. Accordingly, on November 1,
2004, we commenced an offer to purchase Senior Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of up to approximately $18.2 million.
This excess proceeds offer expired on December 1, 2004, with
approximately $0.1 million principal amount, including accrued
and unpaid interest, of 2009 Senior Notes having been rendered.

COMPLETED PREFERRED STOCK EXCHANGE OFFER
AND SUBSEQUENT REPURCHASE

On January 21, 2004, we completed an exchange offer pursuant to
an exemption from registration under Section 3 (a)(9) of the Secu-
rities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to which we exchanged
one share of a newly-created Series B preferred stock for each share
of our then-issued and outstanding Series A preferred stock. In the
exchange offer, all of the approximately 39,186 shares of Series A
preferred stock were exchanged by the fourteen holders of record for
shares of our Seties B preferred stock. Issuance of the newly-created
shares of Series B preferred stock was contingent upon the tender
for exchange of 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Series
A preferred stock.

On June 14, 2004, we commenced an offer to purchase any and all
of the approximately 39,186 then-outstanding shares of our Series B
preferred stock. On July 12, 2004, the offer expired with 100% of
the then-outstanding shares of Series B preferred stock having been
tendered. On July 13, 2004, we purchased all of the tendered shares
at a price of $1,000 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends
up to but not including the date of purchase for approximately
$42.6 million and all then-outstanding shares of our Series B pre-
ferred stock were retired. As a result of the purchase, we recorded an
expense in the third quarter of 2004 of approximately $0.5 million
due to the acceleration of the discount accretion on the shares that
were purchased.

Of the approximately 39,186 then-outstanding shares of our

Series B preferred stock, approximately 9,760 shares had been held
in escrow in order to secure the indemnification obligations of

the former stockholders of ROBB PECK McCOOEY Financial
Services, Inc. (“RPM”) in connection with our acquisition of RPM
in March 2001. In connection with the completion of the offet

to purchase all then-outstanding shares of our Series B preferred
stock, this escrow arrangement was terminated in order to facilitate
our objective of repurchasing and retiring all outstanding shares

of our Series B preferred stock without forfeiting any material right
to indemnification under the merger agreement governing our
acquisition of RPM.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
SPECIALIST SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

For the Years Ended December 31, 20%2;23?:; 20%21'212?3(;
(000’s omitted) 2004 2003 2002 Change Change
Revenues:
Net Gain on Principal Transactions $ 182,535 $ 202,206 $ 342,400 (9.7)% (40.9)%
Commissions 48,781 47,450 50,653 2.8 (6.3)
Other 13,707 6,927 8,116 97.9 (14.7)
Total Segment Revenues 245,023 256,583 401,169 (4.5) (36.0)
Operating Expenses 148,799 144,731 176,704 2.8 (18.1)
Goodwill Impairment 37,600 166,250 — (77.4) —
Exchange Memberships Impairment 16,300 — - - —
Restitution and Fines — 63,519 — (100.0) —
Pre-tax Income (Loss) $ 42,324 $(117,917) $ 224,465 135.9 (152.5)

Revenues from our Specialist segment consist primarily of net gain
earned from principal transactions in securities for which we act as
specialist. Net gain on principal transactions represents trading
gains net of trading losses and SEC transaction fees, where applica-
ble, and are earned by us when we act as principal buying and sell-
ing our specialist stocks, rights, options, ETFs and futures. Also
included in net gain on principal transactions are net gains and
losses resulting from our market-making activities in ETFs, options
and futures, the ner gains and losses resulting from trading of for-
eign currencies, futures and equities underlying the rights, ETFs
and options for which we act as specialist, and accrued dividends
receivable or payable on our equity positions. These revenues are

primarily affected by changes in share volume traded and fluctua-
tions in price of stocks, rights, options, ETFs and futures in which
we are the specialist or in which we make a market.

Commissions revenue generated by our Specialist segment consists
primarily of fees earned when our specialists act as agents by execut-
ing limit orders on behalf of brokers, professional traders and broker
dealers after a specified period of time; we do not earn commissions
when we match market orders or when we act as 2 market-maker.

Other revenue at our Specialist segment consists primarily of inter-
est income, proprietary trading gains or losses and gains or losses
from an investment in a hedge fund.

Key Metrics of our LaBranche & Co. LLC Specialist Business When assessing the performance and financial results of a specific period,

management examines certain metrics to ascertain their impact on our LaBranche & Co. LLC specialist's financial results. Some of the key
metrics that we review, and their values for 2004, 2003 and 2002, are as follows:

2004 vs 2003 2003 vs 2002
Percentage Percentage
2004 2003 2002 Change Change

NYSE Average Daily Share Volume (in millions) 1,456.7 1,398.4 1,441.0 4.2% (3.0)%
LAB Share Volume on the NYSE (in billions) 96.1 94.5 102.1 1.7 (7.4)
LAB Dollar Value on the NYSE (in billions} $2,819.1 $2,477.4 $2,686.5 13.8 (7.8)
Share Volume of Prinicipal Shares Traded (in billions) 22.3 27.6 35.7 (19.2) (22.7)
Dollar Value of Principal Shares Traded (in billions) $682.7 $725.1 $983.4 (5.8) (26.3)
Average Closing Price of the CBOE Volatility Index 15.5 22.0 27.3 (29.5) (19.4)

Program Trading as a Percentage of NYSE Average

Daily Share Volume 50.6 37.5 37.5 34.9 0.0

Generally, an increase in the average daily share volume on the
NYSE, an increase in volatility (as measured by the average closing
price of the CBOE's Volatility Index® or the “VIX”), an increase in
the dollar value and share volume of our principal shares or a
decrease in program trading enables the specialist to increase its
level of principal participation and thus its ability to realize net
gain on principal transactions. While these metrics are monitored

by management each period, they are not the sole indicators or
factors in any given period that determine our level of revenues,
profitability or overall performance. Other factors, such as extreme
price movements, unanticipated company news and events and
other uncertainties may influence our financial performance either
positively or negatively.




YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

The decline in net gain on principal transactions is attributable
primarily to our LaBranche & Co. LLC subsidiary, where special-
ist trading revenue decreased to $149.5 million for 2004 from
$185.3 million for 2003. The decrease was due to a decline in prin-
cipal shares traded as well as a significant decline in market volatil-
ity, as measured by the average closing price of the VIX. Another
factor that has reduced the opportunity for the specialist to partici-
pate is the continuing rise in program trading as a percentage of
NYSE average daily share volume. Program trading involves reduc-
ing large share orders into many smaller orders, resulting in the
orders being matched electronically. These factors offset the benefic
from the increases in NYSE average daily share volume, and share
volume and dollar value traded for stocks in which LaBranche &
Co. LLC is the specialist. Net gain on principal transactions gener-
ated by our LSP and LSPS subsidiaries increased to $33.0 million
in 2004 from $16.9 million in 2003. This revenue growth was the
result of an increase in the number of products traded, market-
maker professionals and exchanges in which LSP trades.

Other revenue earned by our specialist segment was higher primar-
ily due to increased proprietary trading gains, and higher interest
income from our stock borrow transactions—resulting from
increased trading activity at LSP and LSPS—and from our short to
medium term investments.

For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating
Expenses” on page 24.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

In 2003, our net gain on principal transactions decreased primarily
as a result of decreases in NYSE share and dollar volumes traded for
stocks in which we are the specialist, and decreases in NYSE mar-
ket share and volatility. Throughout 2003, the dollar value and
share volume of principal shares traded decreased significantly,
thereby reducing our opportunities to trade profitably. The NYSE’s
share of consolidated volume of trades of NYSE-listed stocks
decreased to 79.5% for 2003 as compared to 82.0% for 2002. The
decline in volatility in the market, as measured by the VIX, also
contribured to the lower net gain on principal transactions. Of our
total $202.2 million and $342.4 million of net gain on principal
transactions for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, $16.9 million and $0.9 million, respectively, were gen-
erated from derivative trading activities at our LSP subsidiary.

Commissions revenue earned by our Specialise segment decreased
due to a decrease in the share volume executed by us as agent and
the effect of competitive price pressures on our billing structure.
The total share volume executed by us as agent in our specialist
stocks decreased 6.7% to 8.4 billion shares for 2003 from 9.0 bil-
lion shares for 2002. The share volume executed by us as agent is
affected by the share volume of LaBranche & Co. LLC’s specialist
stocks on the NYSE, which decreased 7.4% as noted in the key
metrics chart on page 22.

For a furcher discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating

~ Expenses” on page 24.

EXECUTION AND CLEARING SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

2004 vs 2003 2003 vs 2002
For the Years Ended December 31, Percentage Percentage
(000’s omirtted) 2004 2003 2002 Change Change
Revenues:
Commissions $ 47,263 $ 46,994 $41,391 0.6% 13.5%
Other 753 915 3,174 (17.7) (71.2)
Total Segment Revenues 48,016 47,909 44 565 0.2 7.5
Operating Expenses 52,827 57,293 54,390 (7.8) 53
Goodwill Impairment — 4,052 — (100.0) —
Exchange Memberships Impairment 2,027 515 — 293.6 —
Pre-tax Loss $ (6,838) $(13,951) $ (9,825) 51.0 (42.0)

Our Execution and Clearing segment’s commissions revenue
includes fees charged to customers for execution, clearance and
direct-access floor brokerage acrivities.

Our Execution and Clearing segment’s other revenues consist of
interest income, proprictary trading net gains or losses and fees
charged to customers for use of our proprietary front-end order
execution system.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Other revenue from our Execution and Clearing segment decreased
as LFSI ceased providing its proprietary front-end order execution
system on a service bureau basis, and also decreased due to a decline
in interest income. Interest income decreased as a result of lower
balances of our short term investments and reduced levels of stock-
borrow transactions.
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For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating
Expenses” below.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Commissions revenue from our Execution and Clearing segment
increased primarily due to a full year of revenues from our institu-
tional execution group which commenced operations in July 2002.
The growth in our institutional execution group was also the result
of the general growth and expansion of its customer base. The
increase in institutional execution group revenues was partially off-

set by a decline in direct-access and clearance revenues resulting
from the discontinuation of our prime brokerage business, a decline
in clearing customers and a general decrease in the volume of direct
access executions during 2003.

Other revenue from our Execution and Clearing segment decreased
primarily due to the decline in proprietary trading revenues as well
as a decline in interest income. Interest income decreased as a resule
of significantly lower interest rates for our short term investments
and stock-borrow transactions and the decrease in customer debit
account balances. Proprietary trading revenues decreased due to the
discontinuation of proprietary trading during 2003,

For a further discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating Expenses” below.

OTHER SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

2004 vs 2003 2003 vs 2002
For the Years Ended December 31, Percentage Percentage

(000’s omitted) 2004 2003 2002 Change Change

Revenues:

Other $ 26,008 $ 1,497 $ 7,111 1,637.3% (78.9%
Total Segment Revenues 26,008 1,497 7,111 1,637.3 (78.9)
Operating Expenses 67,934 54,703 55,627 24.2 1.7)
Debt Repurchase Premium 49,029 — — — —
Pre-tax Loss $ (90,955) $ (53,206) $ (48,516) 70.9 9.7

The portion of our revenues that is not generated from our two
principal business segments consists primarily of unrealized gains or
losses on our non-marketable investments and interest income.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Other revenues increased primarily as a result of the $24.9 million
realized gain from the sale of our investment in Lava during 2004.

For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating
Expenses” below.
13

OUR OPERATING EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Other revenue decreased as a result of a net depreciation in the
value of our non-marketable investments in 2003. For 2002, the
value of these investments had appreciated. The decrease was also
due to a decline in interest income during 2003 as a resulr of lower
interest rates for our short to medium term investments.

For a further discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating
Expenses” below.

2004 vs 2003 2003 vs 2002
For the Years Ended December 31, Percentage Percentage
(000’s omitted) 2004 2003 2002 Change Change
Expenses:
Employee Compensation and Related Benefits $ 99,310 $ 99,123 $131,511 0.2% (24.6)%
Interest 63,789 48,188 48,589 32.4 (0.8)
Exchange, Clearing and Brokerage Fees 39,010 40,406 37,729 (3.5) 7.1
Lease of Exchange Memberships 15,565 24,773 25,939 (37.2) (4.5)
Goodwill Impairment 37,600 170,302 — (77.9) —
Exchange Memberships Impairment 18,327 515 — 3,458.6 —
Debt Repurchase Premium 49,029 — — — —
Restitution and Fines — 63,519 —_ (100.0) —
Other Operating Expenses 51,886 44,237 42,953 17.3 3.0
Total Expenses before Provision (benefit)
for Income Taxes 374,516 491,063 286,721 (23.7) 71.3
Provision (benefit) for Income Taxes $ (12,045) $ (6,007) $ 78,898 (100.5) (107.6)




Our Specialist segment’s employee compensation and related bene-
fits consists of salaries, wages and profitability-based compensation
paid to our traders and related support staff. The employee com-
pensation and related benefits related to our Execution and Clear-
ing segment consists of salaries, wages and profitability-based
compensation paid to our execution and clearing professionals, as
well as compensation based on commissions earned by various trad-
ing professionals. Profitability-based compensation may include
cash compensation and stock-based compensation paid or granted
to managing directors, trading professionals and other employees
based on our profitability.

Interest expense is primarily incurred from the indebtedness in con-
nection with our reorganization from partnership to corporate form
in 1999, our acquisitions, the issuance of promissory notes in
exchange for our preferred stock and the 2004 refinancing of the
majority of our Old Notes. The interest expense at our Specialist
segment is primarily the result of margin interest expense relating to
positions taken at our LSP and LSPS subsidiaries and interest on
subordinated indebtedness that has been approved by the NYSE for
inclusion in the net capital of our LaBranche & Co. LLC sub-
sidiary. Customers’ free credit balances and bank loans generate
interest expense at our Execution and Clearing segment.

Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees expense at our Specialist seg-
ment consists primarily of fees paid by us to the NYSE, AMEX,
other exchanges, the Depository Trust Clearing Corporation
(“DTCC”) and to third party execution and clearing companies.
The fees paid by us to these entities are primarily based on the vol-
ume of transactions executed by us as principal and as agent, a fee
based on exchange seat use, an allocation fee requiring specialist
firms to share the cost of newly allocated listings, technology fees, a
flat annual fee and execution and clearing fees. Our Execution and
Clearing segment’s exchange, clearing and brokerage fees expense
consists of floor brokerage fees paid to direct-access floor brokers
and fees paid to various exchanges.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

While consolidated employee compensation and related benefits
increased slightly for 2004 as compared to 2003, there were material
changes within the components of employee compensation and
related benefits at each of our segments year over year. The main
cause of these changes was the increase in profitability-based com-
pensation, salaries and related benefics at our LSP and LSPS sub-
sidiaries resulting from increased trading and support personnel,
which is a reflection of their continued growth. These increases were
partially offset by decreases in salaries at our NYSE specialist sub-
sidiary due to a reduction in personnel. The expiration and payment
of a retention bonus plan liability, and a decrease in deferred com-
pensation expense, both related to a prior acquisition, also con-
tributed to the partial offset of the overall increase in employee
compensation. Salaries and profitability-based compensation at our
Execution and Clearing segment declined due to a decrease in trad-
ing and support personnel. Employee compensation and related ben-
efits decreased to 31.1% of revenues for 2004 from 32.4% for 2003.
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Interest expense increased primarily as a result of the issuance of the
Senior Notes in connection with the repurchase on May 18, 2004 of
substantially all the then-outstanding Old Notes. As a result of the
repurchase, we recorded $5.5 million of additional interest expense
related to the acceleration of debt issuance cost amortization and
senior notes discount accretion. The additional interest expense on
the Original Senior Notes, resulting from the increased outstanding
indebtedness, also contributed to the increase. The remaining
increase in interest expense was the result of increased margin inter-
est charges relating to the growth and expansion of trading activity
at our LSP and LSPS subsidiaries. While interest expense increased
t0 20.0% of toral revenues for the year 2004 from 15.7% for 2003,
non-tax deductible dividends on preferred stock have been elimi-
nated effective July 2004.

Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees declined primarily due to the
decrease in fees at our NYSE specialist subsidiary. Contributing to
the decrease was the elimination of the NYSE technology fee in July
of 2003, lower allocation fees for new listings, and a decrease in
NYSE regulatory fees due to a lower number of NYSE floor person-
nel. Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in exchange,
clearing and brokerage fees at our execution and clearing segment
related to higher LFSI revenues from direct-access floor brokers.
Additionally, commissions expense and exchange fees at our LSP
and LSPS subsidiaries increased due to increased trading activity.
Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees declined to 12.2% of rev-
enues for 2004 from 13.2% for the year 2003.

Lease of exchange memberships decreased substantially as a result
of the decline in the average annual lease cost of an NYSE member-
ship and a decrease in the number of our NYSE leased member-
ships. Our average annual lease cost of an NYSE membership for
the year 2004 was approximately $235,000, as compared to
approximately $316,000 for 2003. Additionally, we leased on aver-
age approximately 11 fewer NYSE seats for 2004 than we did in
2003. Lease of exchange memberships expense decreased to 4.9%
of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 8.1%
for the same period in 2003.

Other operating expenses increased in 2004 as compared to 2003
primarily due to an increase in legal, audit and other professional
fees incurred primarily in connection with Sarbanes-Oxley Act
compliance, the refinancing of our debt and litigation. Bank
charges also increased due to investment banking fees relating to
our debt refinancing, and fees charged on a committed revolving
credit facility established in the first quarter of 2004, which was ter-
minated upon the completion of the refinancing of our indebted-
ness on May 18, 2004. Additional expenses relating to our debt
refinancing included credit rating service fees, as well as printing
and filing fees. An increase in insurance premiums also contributed
to the increase.

In September 2004, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of
$37.6 million, all of which was attributable to our Specialist seg-
ment. SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(“SFAS No. 142”) requires entities to test goodwill for possible
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impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently, if certain events
and circumstances exist. We tested our goodwill for impairment at
December 31, 2003, at which time we recorded an impairment
charge of $170.3 million, of which $166.2 million was attributable
to our Specialist segment and $4.1 million was attributable to our
Execution and Clearing segment. Due to certain changes in cir-
cumstances, such as the decrease in our market capitalization and
continued downward trends in our principal trading revenues, we
tested our goodwill for impairment as of September 30, 2004. The
impairment charge, which represents the excess of the carrying
value of our Specialist segment’s goodwill over its implied fair value,
was necessary to properly reflect the carrying value of our goodwill
at September 30, 2004. We updated our third quarter 2004 good-
will valuation results at December 31, 2004, per the annual testing
requirement, and noted no further impairment of this asset at this
date. For a more complete description of our methodology in evalu-
ating the reasonableness of the carrying value of our goodwill,
please see “—Ciritical Accounting Estimates.”

Exchange memberships impairment significantly increased in 2004
as compared to 2003 as a result of an $18.3 million other-than-
temporary impairment charge related to our NYSE exchange mem-
berships. Of this total, $16.3 million was attributable to our Spe-
cialist segment and $2.0 million was attributable to our Execution
and Clearing segment.‘ Whereas the 2004 impairment charge was
related to the 39 NYSE memberships we own (each of which is val-
ued at $1.5 million at December 31, 2004, compared to $2.0 mil-
lion at December 31, 2003), the 2003 impairment charge was
related to an AMEX miembership owned by our LFSI subsidiary.

We incurred a $49.0 million charge in connection with the repur-
chase of a substantial portion of our then-outstanding Old Notes.
This charge was attributable to a consent payment, which was
offered to debr holders who tendered cheir 2004 Notes and 2007
Notes by April 19, 2004, and a premium for tendering the 2004
Notes and 2007 Notes for purchase prior to their maturiry.

Our benefit for income taxes increased two-fold in 2004 to approxi-
mately $12.0 million. In conjunction with this increase, our effec-
tive tax rate rose to 21.8% for 2004 from 3.2% for 2003 as a result
of non-deductible goodwill impairment charge and NYSE penalties
of approximately $179.2 million in 2003, which almost equaled
that fiscal year’s book net loss. By contrast, the non-deductible
goodwill impairment charge of approximately $33.3 million in
2004 represented 59.7% of the book net loss for 2004. Accordingly,
this permanent difference offser almost half of 2004’s statutory tax
rate of 46.1%, or approximately 18.0%.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Employee compensation and related benefits expense decreased as a
result of a reduction in profitabilicy-based compensation accruals
and other employee benefits due to lower revenues in 2003. The

decrease was partially offset by an increase in employee salaries due
to the hiring of additional trading and support personnel for LSP
and LFSI. Employee compensation and related benefits expense
increased to 32.4% of total revenues in 2003, from 29.0% of total
revenues in 2002 as a result of lower revenues.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we recorded a goodwill impairment
charge of $170.3 million, of which $166.2 million was attributable
to our Specialist segment and $4.1 million was attributable to our
Execution and Clearing segment. In determining the goodwill
impairment, we first compared the fair value of each reporting unit
to its carrying value through an analysis of our market capitalization
and discounted cash flows techniques. For the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2003, we engaged an independent valuation firm to assist us
with these fair value tests. Since the carrying value of each reporting
unit exceeded its fair value, we chen compared the implied fair
value of each reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying value. The
implied fair value of each reporting unit’s goodwill was determined
by valuing all assets and liabilities as if each reporting unit had been
acquired in a business combination. The impairment charge, which
represented the excess of the carrying value of each reporting unit’s
goodwill over its implied fair value, was necessary to properly reflect
the carrying value of our goodwill at December 31, 2003.

During 2003, the NYSE and the SEC announced the commence-
ment of investigations regarding the trading practices of several
NYSE specialist firms, including LaBranche & Co. LLC. In Febru-
ary 2004, we and LaBranche & Co. LLC agreed in principle with
the NYSE and the staff of the SEC, subject to final approval by the
SEC, to settle the NYSE and SEC specialist trading investigations.
Pursuant to the agreement in principle, an accrual was made for the
$63.5 settlement as of December 31, 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2004, we had $2,055.1 million in assets, of
which $545.0 million consisted of cash and short-term investments,
primarily in government obligations maturing within three months,
cash and securities segregated under federal regulations and
overnight repurchase agreements. To date, we have financed our
operations primarily with retained earnings from operations and
proceeds from our debt and equity offerings. Due to the nature of
the securities business and our role as a specialist, market-maker
and execution agent, the amount of our cash and short-term invest-
ments, as well as operating cash flow, may vary considerably due

to a number of factors, including the dollar value of our positions

as principal, whether we are net buyers or sellers of securities, the
dollar volume of executions by our customers and clearing house
requirements, among others. Certain regulatory requirements con-
strain the use of a portion of our liquid assets for financing, invest-
ing or operating activities. Similarly, the nature of our business
lines, the capital necessary to maintain current operations and our
current funding needs subject our cash and cash equivalents to dif-
ferent requirements and uses.
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As of December 31, 2004, the scheduled macurities of our contractual obligations, without taking into account any available roll-over

provisions, were as follows:

(000’s omitted) Total <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years >5 Years
Short Term and Long Term Debt* $ 483,542 $ 2,000 $21,642 $ 199,900 $ 260,000
Subordinated Liabilities 17,285 5,990 8,295 3,000 —
Deferred Compensation 21,635 6,000 15,635 — —
Operating Lease Obligations 6,661 2,730 3,509 268 154
Total . $529,123 $ 16,720 $ 49,081 $ 203,168 $ 260,154

~ Amounts represent aggregate amount to be paid at maturity and do not include discounts of approximately $0.1 miilion as of December 31, 2004,

The above table includes indebtedness with primarily long-term
maturities, whose interest and principal payments have a significant
effect on the cash available to finance our current and future opera-
tions. As of December 31, 2004, our most significant long-term
indebtedness was the $199.9 million aggregate principal amount of
2009 Senior Notes, which mature in May 2009, and the $260.0
million aggregate principal amount of 2012 Senior Notes, which
mature in May 2012.

The outstanding senior notes were issued pursuant to a new inden-
ture that is similar to the indentures that governed the Old Notes
prior to their amendment in connection with our May 2004 debt
refinancing. The new indenture includes certain covenants thar,
among other things, limic our ability to make certain investments,
engage in transactions with stockholders and affiliates, create liens
on our assets and sell assets or engage in mergers and consolidations,
except in accordance with certain specified conditions. In addition,
our ability to incur additional indebtedness (other than certain
“permitted indebtedness”), pay dividends, redeem stock or repur-
chase subordinated indebtedness prior to maturity will be limited if
our consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio is at or below a thresh-
old of 2.00:1 on and after December 31, 2004. The “consolidated
fixed charge coverage ratio” reflects a comparison between (1) our
consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amor-
tization expenses, or “EBITDA,” and (2) the sum of our consoli-
dated interest expense and a tax-effected multiple of any dividend
payments that we might make with respect to preferred stock. As of
December 31, 2004, our consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio
was approximately 1.80:1. The indenture governing the Senior
Notes provides for certain exceptions to the limitations on
restricted payments, including, for example, the July 2004 repur-
chase of all then-outstanding shares of our Series B preferred stock,
repurchase of our Senior Notes, and any “restricted payments” up
to an aggregate of $15.0 million over the life of the indenture.

In addition, under the indenture governing the Senior Notes, if; at
any time, our cumulative “restricted payments” since May 18, 2004
generally are greater than (i) the sum of (a) 50.0% of our cumula-
tive consolidated net income since July 1, 2004 (or, if such calcula-
tion is a loss, minus 100.0% of such loss) and (b) 100.0% of the net
cash proceeds received from any issuance or sale of our capital stock
since July 1, 2004, plus (ii) $15.0 million, we will not be entitled to
make a “restricted payment” at such time. While we have not made
any restricted payments since May 18, 2004, we cannot be sure if,
when or to what extent this covenant will prevent us from making

restricted payments in the future. As of December 31, 2004, since
our cumulative consolidated net income since July 1, 2004 was neg-
ative, we were not entitled to make any restricted payments in
excess of the $15.0 million “basket” described above.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes permits us to redeem
some or all of the 2009 Senior Notes on or after May 15, 2007 and
some or all of the 2012 Senior Notes on or after May 15, 2008 at
varying redemption prices, depending on the date of redemption.
In addition, we have the option to redeem up to 33.0% of the
aggregate principal amounct of the 2009 Senior Notes at a redemp-
tion price of 109.5% and up to 33.0% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2012 Senior Notes at a redemption price of 111.0%
using the proceeds of certain equity offerings which we may com-
plete on or prior to May 15, 2007. Under the terms of the inden-
ture, if we sell substantially all our assets or experience specific kinds
of changes in control, we will be required to offer to repurchase
Senior Notes, on a pro rata basis, at a price in cash equal to 101.0%
of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interes, if any,
to the date of purchase.

Afrer giving effect to our May 2004 debt refinancing and the repur-
chase of all then-outstanding shares of our Series B preferred stock in
July 2004, the after-tax earnings per share impact of our ongoing
interest obligations with respect to the Senior Notes is lower than
the combined after-tax earnings per share impact of our interest
obligations with respect to the Old Notes and our non-tax deduct-
ible dividend obligations with respect to our then-outstanding

Series B preferred stock. To the extent we repurchase any Senior
Notes in connection with future corporate strategic initiatives, our
fixed-term interest payments would be correspondingly reduced.

The remaining $13.6 million aggregate principal amount of 2007
Notes that we did not repurchase in connection with our May 2004
debt refinancing will continue to accrue interest at a rate of 12.0%
per annum until they mature on March 2, 2007. To the extent we
are not prohibited under the terms of the indenture governing the
Senior Notes, we may seek to repurchase some or all of the remain-
ing 2007 Notes from time to time on the open market.

For 2004, our reported revenues include a $24.9 million realized
gain from the sale of our investment in Lava. In connection with the
sale, we received cash of approximately $39.0 million at the closing.
Additional consideration of approximately $9.5 million is being
held in escrow to secure our indemnification obligations as a
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stockholder of Lava under the merger agreement and may be
released in whole or in part 15 months after the acquisition is con-
summated, subject to the final determination of any then-outstand-
ing indemnification claims and any claims regarding taxes. Under
the terms of the indenture governing the Senior Notes, to the extent
we do not use the net after-tax proceeds of the Lava transaction to
repurchase certain of our secured indebtedness, repay the indebted-
ness of our subsidiaries or purchase “replacement assets,” we will be
required, on the 361st day following the closing of the Lava transac-
tion, to offer to purchase Senior Notes in an aggregate principal
amount equal to such net after-tax proceeds at a price equal to
100.0% of the principal amount of such Senior Notes.

A potential source of liquidity for LaBranche & Co. LLC is the
committed line of credit that it maintains with a bank. In October
2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC extended this $200.0 million com-
mitted credit agreement to October 28, 2005 on the same terms
and conditions. In connection with the credit agreement, we pay a
quarterly fee of 0.25% of the total committed line of credi.
Amounts outstanding under this credit facilicy would be secured by
our inventory of specialist stocks and bear interest at the bank’s bro-
ker loan rate. This facility can only be used to finance inventory
requirements at LaBranche & Co. LLC. In order to maintain the
availability of funds under this credir facility, we must comply with
certain financial and other covenants.

As a specialist and market-maker, we are required to maintain cer-
tain levels of capital and liquid assets as promulgated by various reg-
ulatory agencies, which regulate our business. As part of our overall
risk management procedures (for further discussion, refer to
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” on
page 30), we attempt to balance our responsibilicy as specialist,
market-maker and broker-dealer with our overall capiral resources.
These requirements restrict our ability to make use of cash and
other liquid assets for corporate actions, such as repaying our debt,
repurchasing stock or making acquisitions.

As a broker-dealer, LaBranche & Co. LLC is subject to regulatory
requirements intended to ensure the general financial soundness
and liquidity of broker-dealers and requiring the maintenance of
minimum levels of net capital, as defined in SEC Rule 15¢3-1.
LaBranche & Co. LLC is required to maintain minimum net capi-
tal, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or %5 of aggre-
gate indebtedness, as defined. NYSE Rule 326 (c) also prohibits a
broker-dealer from repaying subordinated borrowings, paying cash
dividends, making loans to any parent, affiliates or employees, or
otherwise entering into'transactions which would result in a reduc-
tion of its total net capital to less than 150.0% of its required mini-
mum capital. Moreover; broker-dealers are required to notify the
SEC prior to repaying subordinated borrowings, paying dividends
and making loans to any parent, affiliates or employees, or other-
wise entering into transactions which, if executed, would resultin a
reduction of 30.0% or more of their excess net capital (net capital
less minimum requirement). The SEC has the ability to prohibit or
restrict such transactions if the result is deemed detrimental to the
financial integrity of the broker-dealer. As of December 31, 2004,

LaBranche & Co. LLC’s net capital, as defined, was $455.1 million,
which exceeded the minimum requirements by $453.2 million.

The NYSE generally requires its specialist firms to maintain a mini-
mum dollar regulatory capital amount in order to establish that they
can meet, with their own net liquid assets, their position require-
ment. As of December 31, 2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC’s and
LSPS’ required combined dollar amount of net liquid assets, as
defined, was $447.0 million. LaBranche & Co. LLC’s actual net lig-
uid assets, as defined, was $458.7 million as of December 31, 2004.
LSPS is not required to perform a net liquid assets calculation
because LaBranche & Co. LLC's actual net liquid assets exceed the
combined net liquid assets requirement of LaBranche & Co. LLC
and LSPS. The NYSE is currently reviewing its net liquid asset
requirements with an announced view toward reducing the required
amounts for specialists such as LaBranche & Co. LLC. The timing
and extent of any such reduction, however, has not been finally
determined. A reduction in LaBranche & Co. LLC’s net liquid
assets requirement would allow funds no longer needed for net
liquid assets purposes to be used for other corporate purposes.

The AMEX generally requires its equity specialist firms to maintain
a cash or liquid asset position of the greater of (2) $1.0 million or (b)
an amount sufficient to assume a position of sixty trading units of
each security in which the specialist is registered. As of December
31, 2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC satisfied the AMEX equity spe-

cialist liquid asset requirements.

As a registered broker-dealer and member firm of the NYSE, LESI
also is subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by
the NYSE and the SEC. Under the alternative method permitted
by the rule, the minimum required net capital of LFSI as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004 was equal to the greater of $1.5 million or 2.0% of
aggregate debit items, as defined. As of December 31, 2004, LEST’s
net capital, as defined, was $12.5 million, which exceeded its mini-
mum net capital requirement by $11.0 million.

As a clearing broker-dealer, LFSI is subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-3, as
adopted and administered by the SEC. As of January 4, 2005, to
comply with its December 31, 2004 requirement, cash and U.S.
Treasury Bills in the amount of $0.1 million have been segregated in
a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers
exceeding actual requirements by $0.1 million. As of January 5,
2004, to comply with its December 31, 2003 requirement, cash and
U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $6.2 million were segregated in
a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers
exceeding actual requirements by $4.3 million. In addition, the
PAIB Calculation is computed in order for correspondent firms to
classify their assets held by LFSI as allowable assets in the corre-
spondents’ net capital calculation. As of January 4, 2005, to comply
with its December 31, 2004 requirement, cash and U.S. Treasury
Bills in the amount of $4.4 million have been segregated in a special
reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers exceeding
actual requirements by $3.4 million. As of January 5, 2004, to com-
ply with its December 31, 2003 requirement, cash and U.S. Trea-
sury Bills in the amount of $3.7 million were segregated in a special




reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers exceeding
actual requirements by $1.5 million.

As a registered broker-dealer and AMEX member firm, LSP is sub-
ject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
AMEX and the SEC. LSP is required to maintain minimum net
capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or %s of
aggregate indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2004, LSP’s
net capital, as defined, was $23.8 million, which exceeded its mini-
mum net capital requirement by $23.2 million.

As a specialist and member of the NYSE, LSPS is subject to the
provisions of SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and NYSE. LSPS is required to maintain minimum net capi-
tal, as defined, equivalent to the grearer of $100,000 or s of aggre-
gate indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2004, LSPS’ net
capital, as defined under SEC Rule 15¢3-1, was $4.4 million, which

exceeded the minimum requirements by $4.3 million.

Failure by any of our broker-dealer subsidiaries to maintain its
required net capital and net liquid assets, where applicable, may
subject it to suspension or revocation of its SEC registration or its
suspension or expulsion by the NYSE, the AMEX and/or any other
exchange of which it is a member firm.

As evidenced by the foregoing requirements, our broker-dealer sub-
sidiaries require a substantial amount of capital. In particular,
LaBranche & Co. LLC’s and LSPS’ combined net liquid asset
requirement of $447.0 million limits our ability to utilize a substantial
portion of our liquid assets for other corporate purposes. Although a
portion of the combined net liquid asset requirement of $447.0 mil-
lion is met by LaBranche & Co. LLC’s and LSPS’ securities positions,
pending trades and other assets associated with its equity and ETF
specialist activities, a substantial portion of LaBranche & Co. LLC's
cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2004 was used to meet
their combined net liquid asset requirement.

In connection with our acquisition of ROBB PECK McCOOEY
Financial Services, Inc. (“RPM”} in March 2001, we assumed its
liabilities and obligations under its deferred compensation plan.
The deferred compensation plan provides for the payment, on or
before December 15, 2007, of approximately $30.2 million, plus
interest at a rate of 8.0% per year, to certain former employees of
RPM. While the payment of benefits under this deferred compensa-
tion plan may be accelerated in certain circumstances, no more
than $6.0 million in deferred compensation benefits (including
interest) may be paid in any 12 consecutive month period begin-
ning March 15, 2001. After taking into account all payments of
deferred compensation plan benefits through December 31, 2004,
approximately $18.3 million, plus interest, remains payable under
the RPM deferred compensartion plan. If the plan is terminated, the
deferred compensation benefits (including interest) of all partici-
pants, to the extent not previously paid, must be distributed to the
participants in one lump sum.
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As of December 31, 2004, the subordinated indebredness of
LaBranche & Co. LLC aggregated $17.3 million (excluding subor-
dinated liabilities related to contributed exchange memberships).
This subordinated debrt is comprised of senior subordinated notes
and junior subordinated notes, which mature, or matured, on vari-
ous dates between February 2005 and June 2008 and bear interest
at annual rates ranging from 7.7% to 10.0%. The senior subordi-
nated notes were originally issued in the aggregate principal amount
of $15.0 million, and, in accordance with their terms, $3.0 million
in principal amount must be repaid on June 3 of each of 2004,
2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. LaBranche & Co. LLC repaid $3.0
million in accordance with these terms in June 2004. LaBranche &
Co. LLC may prepay, at a premium, all or any part of such senior
subordinated notes at any time, provided that the amount prepaid
is not less than 5.0% of the aggregate principal amount of such
senior subordinated notes then outstanding. Upon the occurrence
of a change of control, LaBranche & Co. LLC may, but is not
required to, make one irrevocable separate offer to each holder of
the senjor subordinated notes to prepay all of the senior subordi-
nated notes then held by that holder. The occurrence of a change of
control also constitutes an event of acceleration under the senior
subordinated notes. Each of the junior subordinated notes has an
automatic rollover provision, which extends the maturity for an
additional year, unless the lender provides at least seven months
advance notice of its intention not to renew at maturity. LaBranche
& Co. LLCis entitled to prepay—with written consent from the
NYSE—the junior subordinated notes without penalty under the
terms of the agreements relating thereto. During the first quarter of
2005, we repaid approximately $1.9 million aggregate principal

amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest, relating to these notes.

As of December 31, 2004, $10.0 million of our outstanding indebt-
edness consisted of one note for $2.0 million, which matures in
June 2005 and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.0%, and eight
separate notes, each in the principal amount of $1.0 million, which
mature in August 2007 and bear interest at an annual rate of 9.0%.

As of December 31, 2004, we have a tax receivable of $1.7 million
for 2004 and 2003. In addition, we intend to file a Federal carry-
back claim for net operating losses generated in 2004, which will be
carried back against 2002 taxable income. The potential refund
claim is approximately $17.3 million, which is net of a $1.1 million
2002 tax audit assessment.

Our “Other liabilities” of $12.5 million reflected on the accompa-
nying 2004 consolidated statement of financial condition are com-
prised of legal and tax contingencies. Such contingencies are
considered long term, as there is no present obligation to pay such
liabilities in the foreseeable future.

We currently anticipate that we will be able to meet our working
capital, regulatory capital and capital expenditure requirements
through at least the next twelve months.
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CREDIT RATINGS

The Original Senior Notes were originally sold in private sales to
institutional investors on May 18, 2004, and substantially all the
Original 2009 Notes and all the Original 2012 Notes were subse-
quently exchanged for substantially identical Senior Notes regis-
tered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The 2004
Notes that remained outstanding after our May 2004 refinancing,
in the aggregate principal amount of $6.9 million, were repaid by us
at their maturity on August 15, 2004. The 2007 Notes that
remained outstanding after our May 2004 debt refinancing, in the
aggregate principal amount of $13.6 million, are publicly held but
are no longer rated. The following table sets forth the credit ratings
on our Senior Notes as of December 31, 2004:

Moody’s
Investors Service Standard & Poor’s
2009 Senior Notes Bal B
2012 Senior Notes Bal B

CASH FLOWS

Our cash flows are related primarily to our specialist trading activi-
ties, as well as to our financing activities related to the expansion of
our business.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Our cash and cash equivalents
decreased $47.4 million to $444.4 million at the end of 2004. The
decrease was the result of $125.4 million used in our operating
activities primarily from payment of the $63.5 million in restitution
and fines in settlement of the prior year’s NYSE and SEC specialist
investigation and a $74.0 million increase in repurchase agree-
ments. This decrease was partially offset by $79.0 million provided
by financing activities due primarily to the refinancing of our
indebtedness.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 OQur cash and cash equivalents
increased by $414.9 million to $491.9 million at the end of 2003.
This increase was primarily the result of investments in U.S. govern-
ment obligations with original maturities of 90 days or less, as well
as our operating activities. We used net cash of $44.0 million in our
investing and financingactivities primarily to buy back shares of
our then-outstanding preferred stock and to pay dividends on our
common shares.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Our cash and cash equivalents
increased by $25.0 million to $77.0 million at the end of 2002.
This increase resulted mainly from $95.5 million provided by our
operating activities, offset by $6.1 million used for investing activi-
ties, including our acquisition of Hochstin & Company, Inc., a
NYSE floor brokerage company, in October 2002. We used net cash
of $64.4 million in financing activities, primarily to repay indebted-
ness and to repurchase shares of our then-outstanding Series A pre-
ferred stock.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Because our equity specialist activities on the NYSE and AMEX
expose our capital to significant risks, managing these risks is a con-
stant priority for us. Our central role in the auction process helps us
to manage risks by incorporating up-to-date market information in
the management of our inventory, subject to our specialist obliga-
tions. We have developed a risk management process that is
designed to balance our ability to profit from our specialist activities
with our exposure to potential losses. Our LaBranche & Co. LLC
risk management process includes participation by our corporate
compliance committee, executive operating committee, floor man-
agement committee, post managers, floor captains and specialists.
These parties’ roles are as follows:

Corporate Compliance Committee. Our corporate compliance com-
mittee was established in February 2002 and consists of representa-
tives from executive and senior management, compliance
personnel, including our on-floor compliance officer, our general
counsel and several additional senior floor specialists, known as post
managers. The role of the corporate compliance committee is to
implement, monitor and report to senior management on the statu-
tory and regulatory compliance efforts of our specialist business.
The corporate compliance committee also establishes, reviews and
revises our policies and procedures governing LaBranche & Co.
LLC’s regulatory compliance structure.

Executive Operating Commirtee. Our executive operating commit-
tee is composed of two executive officers of LaBranche & Co. LLC.
This committee is responsible for approving all risk management
procedures and trading guidelines for our specialist stocks, after
receiving recommendations from our floor management com-
mittee. In addition, our executive operating committee reviews

all unusual situations reported to it by our floor management
committee.

Floor Management Committee. Our floor management committee
is composed of six post managers. This committee is responsible for
formulating and overseeing our overall risk management procedures
and trading guidelines for each of our specialist stocks. In determin-
ing these procedures and guidelines, our floor management com-
mittee considers the recommendations of our floor caprains. Our
post managers meet with their respective floor captains on a weekly
basis to review and, if necessary, revise the risk management proce-
dures and trading guidelines for LaBranche & Co. LLC and/or for
particular specialist stocks. In addition, post managers are always
available on the trading floor to review and assist with any unusual
trading situations reported by any floor captain. Our floor manage-
ment committee reports to our executive operating committee
about each of these unusual trading situations as they occur.

Floor Captains. We have thirteen floor captains who monitor the
activities of LaBranche & Co. LLC's specialists throughout the
trading day from various positions at its trading posts. The floor
captains observe trades and constantly review trading activities on a
real-time basis. In addition, the floor captains are readily available




to assist LaBranche & Co. LLC’s specialists in determining when to
deviate from our procedures and guidelines in reacting to any
unusual situations or market conditions. The floor caprains report
these unusual situations and any deviations from our procedures
and guidelines to their respective post managers. Floor captains
meet with each specialist at least once a week to evaluate each spe-
cialist’s adherence to our risk management procedures and trading
guidelines. Floor caprains also meet to review risk procedures and
guidelines and, if appropriate, make recommendations to the floor
management committee.

Specialists. LaBranche & Co. LLCs specialists conduct auctions of
our specialist stocks based upon the conditions of the marketplace.
In doing so, specialists observe our risk management procedures
and trading guidelines in tandem with their responsibility to create
and maintain a fair and orderly market. Specialists immediately
notify a floor captain of any unusual situations or market conditions
requiring a deviation from our procedures and guidelines.

We believe that the enhancements we have made to our compliance
procedures and guidelines in connection with the undertakings set
forth in our March 2004 settlement with the SEC and NYSE have
improved our risk management process.

Our equity specialist operations on the AMEX are conducted by six
equity specialists. We have one post manager on the AMEX who
monitors the trading activities of the AMEX equity specialists by
observing trades and reviewing positions on a real-time basis. As a
member of the floor management committee, the post manager
regularly communicates with other members of the floor manage-
ment committee regarding any deviations from our AMEX proce-
dures and guidelines set by LaBranche & Co. LLC’s executive
operating committee.

Circuit Breaker Rules. The NYSE and AMEX have instituted cer-
tain circuit breaker rules intended to halt trading in all NYSE/
AMEX listed stocks in the event of a severe market decline. The cir-
cuit breaker rules impose temporary hales in trading when the Dow
Jones Industrial Average drops a certain number of points. Current
circuit breaker levels are set quarterly at 10, 20 and 30 percent of
the Dow Jones Industrial Average closing values of the previous
month, rounded to the nearest 50 points. These rules provide
investors extra time to respond to severe market declines and pro-
vide us an additional opportunity to assure compliance with outr
risk management procedures.

Equity Market Risk We have developed a risk management
process, which is intended to balance our ability to profit from our
equity specialist activities with our exposure to potential losses. We
have invested substantial capital, along with the NYSE, in real-
time, on-line systems which give our management instant access to
specific trading information at any time during the trading day,
including our aggregate long and short positions and our capital
and profit-and-loss information on an aggregate or per issue basis.
Subject to the specialist’s obligation to maintain a fair and orderly
markert and to applicable regulatory requirements, we constantly
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seek to manage our trading positions relative to existing market
conditions.

A high concentration of LaBranche & Co. LLC's principal trading
revenue is generated from its ten and twenty-five most profitable
NYSE specialist stocks. However, the percentage of LaBranche &
Co. LLC’s equity specialist trading revenue generated from its ten
most profitable specialist stocks has decreased from 19.0% to 16.8%
of total principal trading revenue for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2004, respectively. The percentage of LaBranche & Co.
LLC’s equity specialist trading revenue generated from its twenty-
five most profitable specialist stocks has decreased from 36.7% to
33.6% of total principal trading revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. LaBranche 8 Co. LLC
is not overly reliant on a particular group of specialist stocks, as the
composition of its ten and twenty-five most profitable specialist
stocks changes frequently.

Our equity specialist trading activities are subject to a number of
risks, including risks of price fluctuations, rapid changes in the lig-
uidity of markets and foreign exchange risk related to American
Depositary Receipts (‘“ADRs”). In any period, we may incur trad-
ing losses in our specialist stocks for a variety of reasons, including
price fluctuations of our specialist stocks and carrying out our spe-
cialist obligations. From time to time, we may have large position
concentrations in securities of a single issuer or issuers engaged in a
specific industry. In general, because our inventory of securities is
marked-to-market on a daily basis, any significant price movement
in-these securities could result in a reduction of our revenues and
operating profits.

Derivatives Market Risk As a specialist in options, ETFs and
futures, LSP has a responsibility to maintain a fair and orderly mar-
ket, and trades securities as principal out of both obligation and
inclination. LSP’s options, ETFs, futures, U.S. Government obliga-
tions and foreign currency trading exposes it to certain risks, such
as price and interest rate fluctuations, volatility risk, credit risk, for-
eign currency movements and changes in the liquidity of markets.
LSP maintains a market-making capacity in options, ETFs and
futures and trades as principal out of inclination. In its market-
making function, LSP brings immediacy and liquidity to the
markets when it chooses to participate. LSP’s market-making
activities expose it to certain risks including, but not limited to,
price Auctuations and volatilicy.

As a specialist in ETFs on the NYSE, LSPS is responsible for main-
taining a fair and orderly market and trades ETFs as principal out
of both obligation and inclination. LSPS’ ETF trading exposes it to
certain risks, including price fluctuations, foreign currency move-
ments and changes in the liquidity of markets.

Certain members of LSP’s and LSPS’ management are responsible
for managing these risks. These individuals utilize a third-party
software application to monitor LSP’s and LSPS’ positions on a real-
time basis. By monitoring actual and theoretical profit and loss,
volatility and other standard risk measures, these individuals seek to
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insure that all LSP and LSPS traders operate within the parameters
set by management. LSP’s and LSPS’ traders purchase and sell
futures, options, the stocks underlying certain positions, U.S. Gov-
ernment securities and foreign currencies in an attempt to hedge
market and foreign currency risk. LSP’s and LSPS’ aggregate risk is
under constant evaluation by certain members of management and

its traders, and all significant trading strategies and positions are
closely monitored. LSP’s and LSPS’ options, futures and ETF trad-
ing is executed on national and foreign exchanges. These trades
clear through the Options Clearing Corporation, the National
Securities Clearing Corporation or the applicable exchange clearing
organization, thereby reducing potential credit risk.

The following chart illustrates how specified movements in the underlying securities prices of LSP’s and LSPS’ entire portfolios would have

impacted profits and losses from their trading activities:

Profit or (Loss) if the underlying securities move:

(000’s omitted) -15.0% -5.0% 0% +5.0% +15.0%
Portfolio as of:

March 31, 2004 $ 1,646 $ (477) $ (4) $1,577 $ 4,893
June 30, 2004 $(5,972) $ (909) $ 4 $1,771 $ 5,440
September 30, 2004 $ (6,146) $ (104) $(35) $1,390 $3,933
December 31, 2004 $ 1,522 $1,133 $ (36) $1,723 $7,147

The information in the above table is based on certain theoretical
assumptions, and thus does not fully represent the profit or loss
exposure to changes in volatility, interest rates and dividends. The
zero percent change column represents the profit or loss LSP and
LSPS would experience on a daily basis if the relevant market
remained unchanged.

Foreign Currency Risk In connection with LaBranche & Co.
LLC’s trading of U.S.-registered shares of foreign issuers, it is
exposed to varying degrees of foreign currency risk. The pricing of
these securities is based on the value of the ordinary securities as

denominated in their local currencies. Thus, a change in a foreign
currency rate relative to the U.S. dollar will result in a change in the
value of U.S.-registered shares in which LaBranche & Co. LLC acts
as the specialist.

LSP and LSPS trade international ETFs that are denominated and
sertled in U.S. dollars, but the pricing of these ETFs is also affected
by changes in the relevant foreign currency rates. LSP and LSPS
hold various foreign currencies in order to lessen the risks posed by
changing foreign currency rates. In addition, LSP trades derivarives
denominated in foreign currencies, which creates exposure to for-
eign currency risk for LSP.

The following chart illustrates how the specified movements in foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar to which LSP, LSPS and
LaBranche & Co. LLC are exposed would have impacted profits and losses from their trading activities:

Profit or (Loss) if the foreign currencies
relative to the U.S. dollar move:

(000’s omitted) -15.0% -5.0% +5.0% +15.0%
Portfolio as of:

March 31, 2004 $1,325 $ 442 $ (442) $(1,325)
June 30, 2004 $ (402) $(134) $ 134 $ 402
September 30, 2004 $ (514) $(171) $ 171 $ 514
December 31, 2004 $ 767 $ 256 $ (256) $ (767)

The information in the above table is based on certain assumptions
and it does not fully represent the profit and loss exposure to
changes in security prices, volatility, interest rates and other
related factors.

Execution and Clearing Risk In connection with their specialist
and market-making activities, LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP and
LSPS are engaged in various securities trading and lending activities
and assume positions in stocks, rights, options, ETFs, U.S. Govern-
ment securities, futures and foreign currencies for which they are
exposed to credir risk associated with the nonperformance of coun-
terparties in fulfilling their contractual obligations pursuant to

these securities transactions. LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP and LSPS
are also exposed to market risk associated with the sale of securities
not yet purchased, which can be directly impacted by volatile trad-
ing on the NYSE, AMEX and other exchanges. Additionally, in the
event of nonperformance and unfavorable market price movements,
LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP and LSPS may be required to purchase

or sell financial instruments at a loss.

LFST’s execution and clearing activities require that LFST execute
transactions in accordance with customer instructions and accu-
rately record and process the resulting transactions. Any failure,
delay or error in executing, recording and processing transactions,




whether due to human error or failure of LEST’s information or
communication systems, could cause substantial losses for brokers,
customers and/or LESI and could subject LFSI to claims for losses.

Clearing activities include settling each transaction with both the
contra broker and the customer, In connection with LFSI’s institu-
tional and direct access floor brokerage activities, a transaction is
settled either when the customer pays for securities purchased and
takes delivery, or delivers securities sold for payment. Settling trans-
actions for retail customers and professional investors involves
financing the transaction until the customer makes payment or, for
margin accounts, advancing credit to the customer within regula-
tory and internal guidelines. Clearing direct access brokers’ transac-
tions includes guaranteeing their transactions to the contra broker
on the exchange floor.

These clearing activities may expose LESI to off-balance sheer risk
in the event customers or brokers are unable to fulfill cheir contrac-
tual obligations and it is necessary to purchase or sell securities at a
loss. For margin transactions, LFSI may be exposed to off-balance
sheet risk in the event margin requirements are not sufficient to
fully cover losses that customers may incur in their accounts.

The amount of risk related to LFSI’s execution and clearance
activities is linked to the size of the transaction, market volatility
and the creditworthiness of customers and brokers. LEST’s largest
transactions involve those for institutional and direct access floor
brokerage customers.

LFSI systematically monitors its open transaction risk starting when
the transaction occurs and continuing until the designated settle-
ment date. Transactions that remain unsettled after settlement date
are scrutinized and necessary action to reduce LFSIs risk is taken.
Credit risk that could result from contra brokers defaulting is mini-
mized since much of the settlement risk for transactions with bro-
kers is essentially transferred to the National Stock Clearing
Corporation. The credit risk associated with institutional and direct
access clearing customers is minimized since these customers have
been qualified by the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) or the
DTC participants or have met the prime broker qualification stan-
dards at other brokerage firms. Before conducting business with a
prospective customer, LFSIs senior management, in conjunction
with its compliance department, reviews the prospective customer’s
experience in the securities industry, financial condition and per-
sonal background, including a background check with a risk report-
ing agency. For retail customers and professional investors, LFSI
seeks to control the risks associated with customer activities by
requiring customers to maintain margin collateral in compliance
with various regulatory and internal guidelines. LFSI monitors mar-
gin levels daily pursuant to such guidelines and requires customers
1o deposit additional collateral or reduce positions when necessary.
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Operational Risk Operational risk relates to the risk of loss from
external events, and from failures in internal processes or informa-
tion systems. In each of our business segments, we rely heavily on
our information systems in managing our risk. Accordingly, work-
ing in conjunction with the NYSE, we have made significant invest-
ments in our trade processing and execution systems. Our use of,
and dependence on, technology has allowed us to sustain our
growth over the past several years. Management members and floor
captains at our NYSE and AMEX operations must constantly mon-
itor our positions and transactions in order to mitigate our risks and
identify troublesome trends should they occur. The substantial cap-
ital we have invested, along with the NYSE, in real-time, on-line
systems affords management instant access to specific trading infor-
mation at any time during the trading day, including:

« our aggregate long and short positions;

« the various positions of each of our trading professionals;

« our overall position in a particular stock; and

+ capital and profit-and-loss informartion on an aggregate, per spe-
cialist or per issue basis.

Our information systems send and receive dara from the NYSE and
AMEX through dedicated data feeds. The NYSE supplies us with
specialist position reporting system terminals both on the trading
floor and in our offices. These terminals allow us to monitor our
NYSE trading profits and losses, as well as our positions. For our
AMEX equity operations, our in-house technology staff has devel-
oped applications to monitor our current positions and profits and
losses. Our derivative trading operation utilizes a third-party soft-
ware application to monitor its positions and profits and losses on a
real-time basis.

We have developed and implemented a business continuity plan,
which includes a comprehensive disaster recovery plan. We have
back-up disaster recovery centers in New York and New Jersey.

Legal and Regulatory Risk Substantial legal liability or a signifi-
cant regulatory action against us could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition or cause significant harm to our reputa-
tion, which in turn could negatively affect our business prospects.

As registered broker-dealers, LaBranche & Co. LLC, LFSI, LSP and
LSPS are subject to certain regulatory requirements intended to
insure their general financial soundness and liquidity. These sub-
sidiaries are subject to SEC Rules 15¢3-1, 15¢3-3 and other require-
ments adopted and administered by both the NYSE and AMEX.

The USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 requires U.S. financial institu-
tions, including banks, broker-dealers, futures commission
merchants and investment companies, to implement policies,
procedures and controls which are reasonably designed to detect
and report instances of money laundering and the financing

of terrorism. We actively monitor and update our anti-money
laundering practices.
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CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no disagreements with our auditors on accounting and financial disclosure matters during the last two fiscal years.

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited) The following represents the Company’s unaudited quarterly results for fiscal 2004

and fiscal 2003. These quarterly results were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and reflect all
adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the results and which are of a normal recurring nature.

Due to rounding of quarterly results, total amounts for each fiscal year may differ immaterially from the annual results reported in our

consolidated financial statements.

2004 Fiscal Quarter

(000’s omitted, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth
Total revenues $79,913 $ 90,702 $ 64,660 $83,772
Total operating expenses 66,272 135,984 102,494 69,766
Income (loss) before minority interest and provision (benefit)

for income taxes 13,641 (45,282) (37,834) 14,006
Minority interest 175 195 161 (175)
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes 13,466 (45,477) (37,995) 14,181
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 5,552 (20,976) (1,533) 4,912
Net income (loss) 7,914 (24,501) (36,462) 9,269
Preferred dividends and discount accretion 1,056 1,056 142 -
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders $ 6,858 $(25,557) $ (36,604) $ 9,269
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.11 $ (0.43) $ (0.61) $ 0.15

Diluted 0.11 (0.43) (0.61) 0.15

2003 Fiscal Quarter

(000’s omitted, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth
Total revenues $76,634 $87,504 $70,904 $ 70,947
Total operating expenses 65,361 65,471 64,608 295,624
Income (loss) before minority interest and provision (benefit)

for income taxes 11,273 22,033 6,296 (224,677)
Minority interest — 127 167 28
Income (loss) before pfovision (benefir) for income taxes 11,273 21,906 6,129 (224,705)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 5,746 10,316 2,917 (24,986)
Net income (loss) 5,527 11,590 3,212 (199,719)
Preferred dividends and discount accretion 1,167 942 950 954
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders $ 4,360 $10,648 $ 2,262 $(200,673)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ 007 $ 0.18 $ 0.04 $  (3.36)

Diluted 0.07 0.18 0.04 (3.36)




MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of LaBranche & Co Inc., together with its consoli-
dated subsidiaries (the “Company”), is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal execu-
tive and principal financial officers to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
the Company’s financial statements for external reporting purposes
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As of the end of the Company’s 2004 fiscal year, management con-
ducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework established
in Internal Control— Integrared Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(*COSO”). Based on this assessment, management has determined
that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 is effective.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and
procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rea-
sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and disposi-
tion of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accor-
dance with authorizations of management; and provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been
audited by KPMG LLP, an independent regjstered public accounting
firm, as stated in cheir report, appearing on page 36 of this Annual
Report, which express an unqualified opinion on management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, and an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
LaBranche & Co Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition of LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated finan-
cial statements are free of material missratement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the resuls of their operations and their cash Bows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepred accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effec-
tiveness of LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control— Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion (COSO), and our report dated March 14, 2005 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effec-
tive operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

KPMe P

New York, New York
March 14, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
LaBranche & Co Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accom-
panying ManagementsiReport on Internal Controf over Financial
Reporting, that LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2004, based on criteria established in fnternal Control— Inte-
grated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi-
zations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). LaBranche & Co
Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assess-
ment of the effectivenéss of internal control over financial report-
ing. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, test-
ing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control aver financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the main-
tenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com-
pany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that the receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and direc-
tors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial report-
ing may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to future peri-
ods are subject to the risk that the internal control may become inad-
equate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that LaBranche & Co
Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on criteria established in /nzernal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orga-
nizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). Also, in our
opinion, LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries mainrained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal
Control— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spon-
soring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Pub-
lic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the con-
solidated statements of financial condition of LaBranche & Co Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated March 14, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements,

P LIP

New York, New York
March 14, 2005
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(000’s omitted, except share data)

2004 Annual Report

December 31, 2004 2003
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 444,446 $ 491,885
Cash and Securities Segregated Under Federal Regulations 13,511 3,959
Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell 87,000 13,000
Receivable from Brokers, Dealers and Clearing Organizations 158,421 142,639
Receivable from Customers 10,555 3,434
Securities Owned, at Market Value:
Corporate Equities 319,378 265,568
Options 110,705 73,694
Exchange-Traded Funds 128,214 102,626
U.S. Government Obligations 8 —
Commissions Receivable 5,428 4,613
Exchange Memberships Contributed for Use, at Market Value 9,450 15,000
Exchange Memberships Owned, at Adjusted Cost (Market Value of $41,696 and $58,870, Respectively) 59,332 77,319
Office Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, at Cost, Less Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization of $10,655 and $8,931, Respectively 3,459 4,659
Intangible Assets, Net of Accumulated Amortization:
Specialist Stock Lists 361,204 371,580
Trade Name 25,011 25,011
Goodwill 250,569 289,593
Other Assets 68,406 78,510
Total Assets $ 2,055,097 $1,963,090
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Payable to Brokers and Dealers $ 120,434 $ 45,172
Payable to Customers 3,830 9,010
Securities Sold, But Not Yet Purchased, at Marker Value:
Corporate Equities 265,078 232,942
Options 92,580 67,079
Exchange-Traded Funds 142,735 115,140
Accrued Compensation 38,195 42,833
Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Expenses 18,245 36,325
Other Liabilities 12,510 75,595
Income Taxes Payable 1,671 —
Deferred Tax Liabilities 156,294 172,846
Short Term Debt 2,000 101,971
Long Term Debt 481,448 255,606
Subordinarted Liabilities:
Exchange Memberships Contributed for Use, at Market Value 9,450 15,000
Other Subordinated Indebtedness 17,285 20,285
Total Liabilities 1,361,755 1,189,804
Minority Interest 356 322
Commitments and Contingencies
Preferred Stock, Series A, $.01 Par Value, Liquidation Value of $1,000 Per Share; 10,000,000 Shares
Authorized; 0 and 39,186 Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2004 and
2003, Respectively — 38,317
Common Stock, $.01 Par Value, 200,000,000 Shares Authorized; 60,532,080 and 59,791,036 Shares
Issued and OQutstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, Respectively 605 598
Additional Paid-in Capital 687,040 682,816
Retained Earnings 5,341 51,374
Unearned Compensation — (141)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 692,986 772,694
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 2,055,097 $ 1,963,090

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(000’s omitted, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004

2003 2002

Revenues:
Net Gain on Principal Transactions $ 182,535 $ 202,207 $ 342,400
Commissions 96,045 94,443 92,044
Net Gain on Non-Marketable Investments 24,953 1,065 5,161
Orther 15,514 8,274 13,240
Total Revenues 319,047 305,989 452,845
Expenses:
Employee Compensation and Related Benefits 99,310 99,123 131,511
Interest 63,789 48,188 48,589
Exchange, Clearing and Brokerage Fees 39,010 40,4006 37,729
Lease of Exchange Memberships 15,565 24,773 25,939
Depreciation and Amortization of Intangibles 12,221 12,803 13,446
Legal and Professional Fees 12,749 8,034 8,072
Communications 8,594 8,705 6,633
Occupancy 5,254 5,832 5,446
Restitution and Fines — 63,519 —
Goodwill Impairment 37,600 170,302 —
Exchange Memberships Impairment 18,327 515 —
Debt Repurchase Premium 49,029 — —
Other : 13,068 8,863 9,336
Total Expenses 374,516 491,063 286,721
Income (Loss) Before Minority Interest and Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes (55,469) (185,074) 166,124
Minority Interest 356 322 —
Income (Loss) Before Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes (55,825) (185,396) 166,124
Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes (12,045) (6,007) 78,898
Net Income (Loss) (43,780) (179,389) 87,226
Preferred Dividends and Discount Accretion 2,253 4,014 6,941
Net Income (Loss) Applicable to Common Stockholders $ (46,033) $ (183,403) $ 80,285
Weighted-average Common Shares Outstanding:

Basic 59,905 59,614 58,992

Diluted 59,905 59,614 59,939
Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Basic $  (0.77) $ (3.08) $ 1.36

Diluted $  (0.77) $ (3.08) $ 1.34

The accompanying notes are.an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(000’s omitced)

Common Stock Addit?onal . Unearned
Preferred Paid-In Retained Compen-
Shares Amount Stock Capital Earnings sation Total

Balance, December 31, 2001 58,734 $587 $ 94,531 §671,422 § 168,780 $(6,962) $928,358
Net Income — — — — 87,226 — 87,226
Preferred Stock Dividends &

Discount Accretion — — 2,994 — (6,941) — (3,947)
Recognition of Tax Benefits Related

to Employee Option Exercises — — — 2,610 - — 2,610
Issuance of Restricted Stock, Shares

for Option Exercises and

Related Compensation 770 8 — 5,569 — 6,028 11,605
Preferred Stock Buyback — — (36,164) — — — (36,164)
Balance, December 31, 2002 59,504 $595 $ 61,361  §679,601 $ 249,065 $ (934) $ 989,688
Net Loss — — — — (179,389) — (179,389)
Common and Preferred Stock

Dividends & Discount Accretion — — 688 — (18,302) — (17,614)
Recognition of Tax Benefits Related

to Employee Option Exercises — - — 372 — — 372
Issuance of Restricted Stock, Shares

for Option Exercises and

Related Compensation 287 3 — 2,843 - 793 3,639
Preferred Stock Buyback — — (23,732) — —_ — (23,732)
Balance, December 31, 2003 59,791 $598 $ 38,317 $682816 § 51374 $ (141) $772,964
Net Loss — — — - (43,780) - (43,780)
Preferred Stock Dividends &

Discount Accretion —_ —_ — — (2,253) - (2,253)
Recognition of Tax Benefits Related

to Employee Option Exercises — — — 1,371 - — 1,371
Issuance of Restricted Stock, Shares

for Option Exercises and

Related Compensation 741 7 — 2,853 — 141 3,001
Preferred Stock Buyback — — (38,317) — — — (38,317)
Balance, December 31, 2004 60,532 $ 605 $ —  $687,040 $ 5,341 $ —  $692,986

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(000’s omirtted)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income (Loss) $ (43,780) $(179,389) $ 87,226
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization of Intangibles 12,221 12,803 13,446
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs and Bond Discount 7,380 2,155 2,078
Goodwill Impairment 37,600 170,302 —_
Minority Interest in Income of Consolidated Subsidiary 356 322 —
Compensation Expense Related to Stock-based Compensation 3,277 3,423 3,114
Deferred Tax Provision (Benefit) (12,914) (23,329) 11,734
Acceleration of Preferred Stock Discount Accretion 496 918 1,844
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Exchange Memberships Owned 18,327 515 —
Tax Benefit Related to Employee Stock Transactions 1,167 433 6,639
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Cash and Securities Segregated Under Federal Regulations (9,552) 12,053 62,356
Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell (74,000) 13,000 33,113
Receivable from Brokers, Dealers and Clearing Organizations (15,782) 2,748 32,142
Receivable from Customers (7,121) 8,991 (1,419)
United States Government Obligations - 395,840 (67,792)
Securities Owned, at Market Value:
Corporate Equities (53,810) (159,273) 28,338
Options  ~ (37,011) (12,216) 6,971
Exchange-Traded Funds (25,588) (81,171) 1,022
United States Government Obligations (8) — —
Commissions Receivable (815) (234) 592
Ovther Assets 1,414 (3,773) (6,930)
Payable to Brokers and Dealers 75,262 28,755 (23,116)
Payable to Customers (5,180) (12,961) (41,268)
Securities Sold, But Not Yer Purchased, at Market Value:
Corporate Equities 32,136 126,257 (20,311)
Options 25,501 3,384 4,873
Exchange-Traded Funds 27,595 110,781 —
Accrued Compensation (4,638) (12,352) 1,072
Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Expenses (16,511) (12,958) (40,644)
Other Liabilities (63,085) 67,637 7,958
Income Taxes Payable 1,671 (3,760) (7,547)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (125,392) 458,901 95,491
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net Cash Paid for Acquisitions $ — $ —_ $ (3,376)
Payments for Purchases of Office Equipment and Leasehold Improvements (668) (995) (2,683)
Payments for Purchases of Exchange Memberships (340) (19) —
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,008) (1,014) (6,059)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayment of Subordinated Debt and Promissory Notes (3,000) — (37,531)
Repayment of Minority Interest (322) - —
Proceeds from Exercise of Stock Options 1,375 216 8,491
Issuance of New Senior Notes 460,000 — —
Repurchase of Old Notes (336,458) — —
Payment of Common Stock Dividends — (14,288) —
Payment of Preferred Stock Dividends (3,448) (4,313) (7,238)
Payment for Preferred:Stock Buyback (39,186) (24,650) (28,164)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 78,961 (43,035) (64,442)
Increase (Decrease) in' Cash and Cash Equivalents (47,439) 414,852 24,990
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 491,885 77,033 52,043
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 444,446 $ 491,885 $ 77,033
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(000’s omirted)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Paid During the Year for:
Intterest $ 55,113 § 42,704 $ 46,022
Income Taxes $ 525 $ 20,193 $ 65,513
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Acquisitions:
Intangible Assets $ — $ — $ 4,665
Fair Value of Tangible Assets Acquired, Other Than Cash — — 2,825
Deferred Tax Liabilities Related to Intangible Assets — — 687
Other Liabilities — — 3,332
Common Stock Issuance — — —
Net Increase in Additional Paid In-Capital Related to Stock-based Awards 4,224 4,008 14,207
Satisfaction of Secured Demand Notes Through Release of Collateral $ — $ 8,000 $ 1,000

Exchange transactions:

(a) The Company exchanged one share of a newly-created Series B preferred stock for each share of its then-issued and outstanding
Series A preferred stock. All of the approximately 39,186 shares of Series A preferred stock, with a liquidation value of $1,000 per share,
were exchanged.

(b) The Company exchanged (i) 98.5% of its $200.0 million aggregate principal amount 9.5% Senior Notes due 2009 that have been
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for an equal principal amount of outstanding 9.5% Senior Notes due 2009,
and (ii) 100.0% of its $260.0 million aggregate principal amount 11.0% Senior Notes due 2012 that have been registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for an equal principal amount of outstanding 11.0% Senior Notes due 2012.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION

OF BUSINESS
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
LaBranche & Co Inc., 2 Delaware corporation (the “Holding
Company”), and its subsidiaries, LaBranche & Co. LLC, a New
York limited liability company (“LaBranche & Co. LLC),
LaBranche Financial Services, Inc., a New York corporation
(“LESI), LaBranche Structured Products, LLC, a New York lim-
ited liability company (“LSP”), LaBranche Structured Products
Specialists, LLC, a New York limited liability company (“LSPS”),
LABDR Services, Inc.,.a Delaware corporation (“LABDR”), and
LaBranche & Co. B.V,; a Netherlands private limited liability
company (“BV” and collectively with the Holding Company,
LaBranche & Co. LLC, LFSI, LSP, LSPS and LABDR, the “Com-
pany”). The Holding Company is the sole member of LaBranche
& Co. LLC, LSP and LSPS, the 100% stockholder of LFSI and
LABDR, and the sole owner of BV. LaBranche & Co. LLC is a reg-
istered broker-dealer and operates primarily as a specialist in equity
securities and rights listed on the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE”) and in equity securities on the American Stock Exchange
(the “AMEX?”). LFSI is a registered broker-dealer and a member of
the NYSE and other exchanges, and provides securities clearing,
securities execution and other related services to its own customers
and customers of introducing brokers. LESI also provides direct-
access floor brokerage services to institutional customers. LSP is
a registered broker-dealer and operates as a specialist in options,
Exchange-Traded Funds (“ETFs”) and futures on the AMEX, the
New York Board of Trade (“NYBOT”) and the Philadelphia Stock
Exchange (“PHLX”), and as a market-marker in options, ETFs and
futures on several exchanges. LSPS is a registered broker-dealer and
operates as a specialist in ETFs traded on the NYSE. LABDR pro-
vides disaster recovery services and back-up facilities to other Hold-
ing Company subsidiaries. BV represents LaBranche & Co. LLC in
European markets and provides client services to LaBranche & Co.
LLC’s European listed companies.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Certain prior
period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
period presentation.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Holding Company and its wholly-owned and majority-owned sub-
sidiaries. All significantinter-company balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include all
demand deposits held in banks and highly liquid investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less.

Securities Transactions Principal securities transactions and the
related gains and losses are recorded on a trade date basis. Customer
securities transactions are recorded on a settlement dare basis and
the related revenues and expenses are recorded on a trade date basis.
Receivables from, and payables to, customers represent amounts
due from or to customers of the Company in connection with cash
and margin securities transactions. Certain receivables are collater-
alized by customers’ securities held by the Company and by other
broker-dealers for delivery to the Company, the value of which is
not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments. Corporate equities, options, ETFs, futures and other securi-
ties owned, and securities sold, but not yet purchased, are reflected
at market value and unrealized gains and losses are presented as a
component of “Net gain on principal transactions.” U. S. Govern-
ment obligations, which are reported under “Securities owned,

at market value” are reflected at market value. U. S. Government
obligations included under “Cash and cash equivalents,” together
with related interest receivable, which is reported under “Other
assets,” approximate market value. Interest income related to U.S.
Government obligations is included in “Revenues—other.” Divi-
dend income and expense and Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion {(“SEC”) fees, as well as gains and losses from the trading of
foreign currencies, are also presented as a component of “Net gain
on principal transactions.” Dividend income and expense are recog-
nized on the record dare, which does not differ materially from the
ex-date. In the normal course of business, the Company is permit-
ted to use client margin securities to finance customer securities
transactions, subject to certain regulatory guidelines. The market
value for the equity securities, ETFs and future contracts is based
on the closing price posted on the primary exchange on which they
are traded. The marker value of exchange-traded options is based
on the national best bid/offer as determined by the Company’s
options clearing agents.

Investments in non-marketable securities consist of investments

in equity securities of private companies, limited liability company
interests and limited partnership interests, and are included as part
of “Other assets” on the consolidated statements of financial condi-
tion. These investments do not have readily available price quota-
tions. Non-marketable investments are accounted for under the
equity method, for those investments in which the Company’s
voting interest is 20% to 50%, or at fair value. In determining fair
value, management of the Company considers third-party transac-
tions evidencing a change in value, the financial performance of
the investee, or any specific rights associated with the investment
such as conversion features. Changes in fair value are recognized

if the expected realizable value of the investment differs from its
carrying value,

Collateralized Financing Transactions Securities purchased and
sold under agreements to resell and repurchase, as well as securities
borrowed and loaned for which cash is deposited or received, are
treated as collateralized financing transactions and are recorded at
contract amount plus accrued interest. It is the policy of the Com-
pany to obtain possession of collateral with market value equal to or
in excess of the principal amount loaned under resale agreements.




Collateral is valued daily, and the Company may require counter-
parties to deposit additional collateral when necessary. The market
value of securities received for securities purchased under agree-
ments to resell at December 31, 2004 exceeded total cash paid. None
of the securities received were subsequently repledged or resold.

Intangible Assets Intangible assets are comprised of the Company’s
specialist stock lists, trade name and goodwill acquired in connec-
tion with various acquisitions and the limited partner buyout that
occurred in 1999 concurrent with the Company’s reorganization
from partnership to corporate form. For material acquisitions
through March 2001, the allocations of purchase price to these
assets and determinartions of their respective useful lives were based
upon independent appraisals. The useful lives of the acquired spe-
cialist stock lists were determined based upon analysis of historical
turnover characteristics of the specialist stocks comprising these
lists. For acquisitions subsequent to March 2001, the allocations of
purchase price and determinations of useful lives were based upon
management’s analysis of revenues, consideration paid, common
stock listings and other relevant data and ratios. This information
was analyzed and compared to the results of the independent

appraisals conducted in connection with the acquisitions prior to
April 2001.

Goodwill In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”), goodwill is not amortized.
SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested annually for impair-
ment (or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances
indicate impairment testing may be necessary) by applying a fair
value-based test. This test involves the comparison of the fair value
of a reporting unit to its carrying value. If the carrying value of the
reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, there is an indication
that goodwill might be impaired, which requires additional testing.
This additional testing entails estimating the implied fair value of
reporting unit goodwill—through the use of discounted cash flows
analysis and other measures—and comparing this implied fair value
of reporting unit goodwill to its carrying value. Any excess of carry-
ing value of reporting unit goodwill over its implied fair value is rec-
ognized as an impairment loss. For the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded goodwill impair-
ment charges of $37.6 million, $170.3 million and $-0-, respectively
(see Note 6).

Trade Name Under SFAS No. 142, the acquired trade name is not
amortized. The Company tests its trade name for impairment
annually (or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired) in conjunction with its
goodwill impairment assessment. If the carrying amount of the
trade name exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized
in an amount equal to that excess. As of December 31, 2004, the
Company’s trade name was not impaired.

Specialist Stock Lists Acquired specialist stock lists are amortized
over their respective useful lives. The Company assesses its specialist
stock lists for possible impairment in accordance with SFAS No.
144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
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Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”). Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, the Com-
pany evaluates its stock lists for potential impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amount may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss, calcu-
lated as the difference berween the estimated fair value and the car-
rying value of the stock lists, is recognized if the expected
undiscounted cash flows relating to the stock lists are less than the
corresponding carrying value. In conjunction with this evaluation,
the Company also reviews the reasonableness of the specialist stock
lists’ remaining useful lives. Any revisions to amortization periods
are considered when developing the aforementioned undiscounted
cash flows. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s stock lists
were not impaired.

Exchange Memberships In accordance with the American Insti-
tute of Certified Public Accountants’ (“AICPA”) Audit and
Accounting Guide— Brokers and Dealers in Securities, exchange
memberships owned by the Company are originally carried at cost
or, if an other-than-temporary impairment in value has occurred, at
adjusted cost, which reflects management’s estimate of fair value. In
determining whether an other-than-temporary decline in value has
occurred, the Company uses Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF")
Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
and Its Application to Certain Investments, and Section M of Topic 5
of the SEC staff accounting bulletin series (“SAB No. 59”) as analo-
gous guidance. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, the Company recognized impairment losses of $18.3 million,
$0.5 million and $-0-, respectively, on owned exchange member-
ships (see Note 5).

Certain employees of the Company have contributed the use of
nine memberships on the NYSE to the Company. These member-
ships are subordinated to claims of general creditors and are carried
at market value with a corresponding amount recorded as subordi-
nated liabilities. The Company makes lease payments to these
employees for the use of the exchange memberships at a rate thatis
commensurate with the rent paid to non-affiliated parties for the
use of their exchange memberships.

The Company leases additional memberships on the NYSE, the
AMEX and the Chicago Board Options Exchange® (*CBOE”)
from non-affiliated parties and makes lease payments to these
parties at prevailing market rates.

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes using the
asset and liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” SFAS No. 109 requires the recog-
nition of tax benefits or expenses based on the estimated future rax
effects of temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of an entity’s assets and liabilities. The effect on
deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized as income in the
period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are
established to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that more
likely than not will be realized. The Company’s deferred tax assets
are presented as a component of “Other assets” in the consolidated
statements of financial condition. Tax contingencies, and related
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employment tax contingencies, are included under “Other liabili-
ties” on the 2004 consolidated statement of financial condition.
Contingent liabilities related to income taxes are recorded when the
criteria for loss recognition under SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies” are met.

Depreciation and Amortization Depreciation of office equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful
lives of 5 years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is calcu-
lated using the lower of the estimated useful life of the leasehold
improvement or the term of the related lease. Estimarted useful lives
of leasehold improvements range from 1 to 5 years.

Acquired specialist stock lists are amortized over useful lives ranging
from 15 to 40 years.

Stock-Based Compensation Effective January 1, 2003, the Com-
pany began to account for stock-based employee compensation in
accordance with the prospective method prescribed by SFAS No.
148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” Under
this method, compensation expense is recognized over the related
service periods based on the fair value, as of the date of grant, of
stock options and restricted stock units granted to employees on or
after January 1, 2003. Such stock options and restricted stock units
are included in “Stockholders’ equity” under SFAS No. 148 when
services required from employees in exchange for the awards are
rendered and expensed!

Compensation expense resulting from stock-based awards granted
for the year ended December 31, 2002 and prior years is accounted
for under the intrinsic value-based method prescribed by APB

No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” as permitted
by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
In accordance with APB No. 25, no compensation expense is
recognized for stock options issued for years prior to fiscal 2003
that had no intrinsic value on the date of grant. In addition, com-
pensation expense was iiot recognized for those stock options issued
in connection with the Company’s acquisition of ROBB PECK
McCOOEY Financial Services, Inc. (“RPM”) in March 2001 and
were treated as part of the purchase price of RPM in accordance
with the rules of purchase accounting.

Had the Company recognized compensation expense over the rele-
vant service period under the fair value-based method of SFAS
No. 123 with respect to stock options granted for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and prior years, net income (loss) applicable
to common stockholders would have been reduced (or increased,
where applicable), resulting in pro forma net income (loss)

applicable to common stockholders and earnings (loss) per share
as presented below:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(000’s omitted, except
per share data)

Net Income (Loss) Applicable
to Common Stockholders,
as Reported

Add: Stock Based Compensa-
tion Expense, Net of
Related Tax Effects, Included
in Reported Net Income
(Loss)

Less: Stock Based Compensa-

$ (46,033) $(183,403) $80,285

1,647 1,788 1,631
tion Expense, Net of Related
Tax Effect, Determined
Under SFAS 123

Pro Forma Net Income (Loss)

(6,908) (8,913) (8,843)

Applicable to Common
Stockholders
Diluted Earnings (Loss) per

$(51,294) $(190,528) $73,073

Share, as Reported $ 0.77) % (3.08) $ 1.34

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per
Share, Pro Forma $

0.86) $ (3.200 $ 1.22

The effect of applying SFAS No. 123 in the pro forma disclosure
above may not be representative of the potential effect stock-based
compensation would have on net income (loss) in future periods.

New Accounting Pronouncements In December 2003, the FASB
issued FIN 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, An
Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” FIN 46(R) requires a company to
consolidate a variable interest entity (“VIE”) if the company has
variable interests that give it a majority of the expected losses or a
majority of the expected residual returns, or both, of the entity.
FIN 46(R) was effective no later than the end of the first reporting
period that ended after March 15, 2004. As of December 31, 2004
the Company has determined that none of its non-marketable
investments are considered a VIE under the guidance provided in
FIN 46(R), and therefore, the implementation of FIN 46(R) has

had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 123,
SFAS No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) will
require compensation costs related to share-based payment transac-
tions to be recognized in the financial statements over the period
that an employee provides service in exchange for the award. SFAS
No. 123(R) replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25.
SFAS No. 123(R) will be effective for the Company’s third quarter
of fiscal 2005. Management is currently evaluating the effect of
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), but does not expect adoption to have
a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.




NOTE 3: RECEIVABLE FROM AND PAYABLE TO
BROKERS, DEALERS AND CLEARING
ORGANIZATIONS

The balances presented as receivables from, and payables to, brokers,

dealers and clearing organizations consist of the following:

December 31,
(000’s omitted) 2004 2003
Receivable from Brokers, Dealers and
Clearing Organizations:
Securities Borrowed $ 56,327 $ 74,989
Receivable from Clearing Brokers
and Clearing Organizations 76,656 34,714
Securities Failed to Deliver 15,542 24,967
Other Receivables from Brokers
and Dealers 9,896 7,969
$ 158,421 $ 142,639
Payable to Brokers and Dealers:
Pending Trades, Net $ 30295 § 7,737
Securiries Failed to Receive 6,502 12,637
Securities Loaned 6,930 —
Other Payables to Brokers and Dealers 76,707 24,798
$120,434 $ 45,172

With respect to securities loaned, the Company receives collateral
in the form of cash in an amount in excess of the market value of
such securities. If the Company’s counterparties to its securities
loaned transactions have the right, by contract or custom, to sell or
re-pledge the Company’s pledged proprietary securities, then the
Company will disclose these securities as “securities pledged to
counterpatties” on the accompanying consolidated statement of
financial condition. As of December 31, 2004, there were no
pledged proprietary securities related to the Company’s securities
loaned transactions.

The Company monitors the market value of securities borrowed
and loaned on a daily basis, with additional collateral obtained or
refunded as necessary.

NOTE 4: NON-MARKETABLE SECURITIES

During 2004, the Company recognized a gain of approximately
$24.9 million related to the sale of its principal non-markerable
investment. Further consideration of approximately $9.5 million is
being held in escrow to secure indemnification obligations of the
former stockholders of the investee company and may be released in
whole or in part 15 months after the acquisition was consummated,
subject to the final determination of any then-outstanding indem-
nification claims and any claims regarding taxes. The indenture
governing certain of the Company’s long term debt provides certain
requirements for use of the after-tax proceeds of this transaction
(see Note 9). At December 31, 2004 and 2003, non-marketable
securities totaling $7.0 million and $20.8 million, respectively,

are included in “Other assets” on the consolidated statements of
financial condition.
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NOTE 5: EXCHANGE MEMBERSHIPS

In June 2004, the Company recognized a charge of approximately
$18.3 million to reflect management’s determination of an other-
than-temporary impairment of the carrying value of the Company’s
NYSE memberships, based on management’s estimate of their fair
value. As part of its assessment of the other-than-temporary impair-
ment of these assets, management of the Company considered and
evaluated various financial and economic factors directly affecting
both the equity securities market as a whole and the specialist
industry in particular, including recent sale and lease prices of
NYSE memberships, historical trends of sales and lease prices of
NYSE memberships and their durartion, the current condition of
the NYSE market structure and legal and regulatory developments
affecting the NYSE market structure.

Of the rotal $18.3 million other-than-temporary impairment
charge, approximately $16.3 million was attributed to the Com-
pany’s Specialist reporting unit and approximately $2.0 million was
attributed to the Company’s Execution and Clearing reporting unit.

The Company previously recorded a $0.5 million other-than-
temporary impairment charge in December 2003 relating to its
Execution and Clearing reporting unit’s AMEX membership.

NOTE 6: GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ‘
Goodwill For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company
recognized a goodwill impairment charge of $37.6 million. This
impairment charge was determined as part of the Company’s assess-
ment of the reasonableness of its goodwill carrying value during the
third quarter of 2004. Although the Company’s annual goodwill
impairment testing date is December 31, management undertook
an interim review of the Company’s goodwill for impairment, as
required by SFAS No. 142, due to changes in circumstances that
management believed would more likely than not reduce the fair
value of goodwill below its carrying amount. The factors manage-
ment considered in deciding to assess the reasonableness of the car-
rying value of goodwill ac September 30, 2004 primarily related to
the continued downward trend in principal trading revenues at the
Company’s Specialist reporting unit and the continued decline in
the Company’s stock price through the nine months ended Septem-
ber 30, 2004. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, management subsequently
updated its goodwill valuation analysis through and including the
Company’s annual impairment testing date, or December 31, 2004,
and noted no indicators of further goodwill impairment.

In testing for goodwill impairment, management first determined the
fair value of the Company’s equity by comparing the fair value of the
Company’s Specialist reporting unit to its carrying value. The pri-
mary methods used to estimate the fair value of the Company’s
equity included the use of an independent appraisal, various cash
flow estimates and related discount rate assumptions, as well as the
market capitalization of the Company. In its discounted cash flow
analysis, the Company used certain estimates and assumptions to
make financial projections, which incorporated the 2004 operating
results as the base year. Since the result of this first comparison
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resulted in an excess of the Specialist reporting unit’s carrying value
over its fair value, the Company then estimated the implied fair value
of goodwill of its Specialist reporting unit and compared it to its car-
rying value. Implied fair value of goodwill was determined by valuing
all Specialist reporting unit assets and liabilities pursuant to the pur-
chase accounting guidelines prescribed by SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations.” The $37.6 million impairment charge represents the
excess of goodwill carrying value over its implied fair value.

As a result of the Company’s allocation of its fiscal 2003 goodwill
impairment charge (discussed below), no goodwill remained at the
Company’s Execution and Clearing reporting unit. Accordingly, the
fiscal 2004 goodwill impairment charge was attributed entirely to
the Company’s Specialist reporting unit.

The $39.0 million dectease in net carrying value of goodwill from
$289.6 million as of December 31, 2003 to $250.6 million as of
December 31, 2004 was due to the aforementioned $37.6 million
impairment charge and a $1.4 million tax benefit on stock-based
compensation awarded in connection with a prior acquisition.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company recognized a
goodwill impairment charge of approximarely $170.3 million. The
methods used by the Company in determining the fair value of its
equity and in estimating the implied fair value of its goodwill during
the year ended December 31, 2004 were consistent with those used
during the year ended December 31, 2003. However, the Company’s

amiortization expense for the existing specialist stock lists is $10.4
million for each of the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005
through December 31, 2009.

NOTE 7: INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes
reflected on the accompanying consolidated statements of opera-
tions are set forth below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000’s omitted) 2004 2003 2002
Current Income Taxes:

Federal $ 547 $ 10,904  $43,592

Foreign, State and Local 322 6,418 23,572
Tortal Current 869 17,322 67,164
Deferred Income Taxes:

Federal (8,129) (14,685) 7,615

Foreign, State and Local (4,785) (8,644) 4,119
Total Deferred (12,914) (23,329) 11,734
Toral Provision (Benefit) for

Income Taxes $(12,045) $ (6,007) $78,898

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The fol-
lowing table presents the components of deferred tax asset and

2003 goodwill valuation analysis included both reporting segments, liability balances:
Specialist and Execution and Clearing.
For the Years Ended
Of the total fiscal 2003 $170.3 million goodwill impairment charge, December 31,
approximately $166.2 million was attributed to the Company’s Spe- (000’s omitted) 2004 2003
cialist reporting unit and approximately $4.1 million was aceributed Deferred Tax Assets:
to the Company’s Execution and Clearing reporting unit. Deferred Compensation $ 9,963 $ 15,627
. ] ) ) Restitution — 18,738
The $181‘_0 _rmlhon decrease in net carrying value ofgf)().dw1ll from Acquisition Intangibles and
$470.6 million as ofDecember'31, 2.002 t0 $289.6 mlll%on as of Related Goodwill 6,033 8.138
December 31, 2003 was due primarily to the aforementioned NOL Carr 24,087 .
o - yover ,
$17Q.3 'n'nlhon impairment charge and a $10.7 million deferred Other 2.423 3,642
tax liability effect.
Total Deferred Tax Assets $ 42,506 § 46,145
Identifiable Intangible Assets The Company’s acquired specialist D eferre(.:l."[.'ax Llablht.lesz
stock lists are amortized over their respective lives ranging from 15 Acquisition Intangibles
to 40 years, with a weighted-average amortization period of 39.6 (Non-Tax Deductible) $ 133,240 § 144,288
vears. The gross carrying amount, accumulated amortization and Acquisition Intangibles and Goodwill
net carrying amount of acquired specialist stock lists are set forth (Tax Deductible) 17,113 18,394
below as of December 31: Securities Marked-to-Market 3,935 4,784
Non Marketable Investment Basis 934 4,674
(000’s omitted) 2004 2003 Other 1,072 706
Gross Carrying Amount $ 406,190 $ 406,190 Total Deferred Tax Liabilities $156,294 $172,846
Accumulated Amortization (44,986)  (34,610)

Net Carrying Amount $361,204 $371,580

Amortization expense was approximately $10.4 million for each of
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. Estimated

The 2004 net decrease in deferred tax assets was mainly atcributable
to the reduction of the deferred charges related to the restitution
assessment by the SEC and NYSE, and the reduction of the
deferred compensation charges related to retention bonuses, which




was partially offset by the increase in deferred tax assets for the net
operating loss carryover. There is no valuation allowance recorded
against the deferred tax assets. In assessing the realization of
deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred rax assets will not
be deductible. Based upon the Company’s level of historical taxable
income, future reversals of existing taxable differences and all other
available evidence, the deferred tax assets will more likely than not
be realized.

The 2004 net decrease in deferred tax liabilities is due primarily to
the current year reduction of deferred tax liability recognized for
non-deductible acquisition intangibles and recognition of a
deferred gain from the sale of a non-marketable investment.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the Federal statutory
rate primarily due to the nondeductible amortization of intangible
assets, nondeductible impairment of exchange memberships, non-
deductible impairment of goodwill, nondeductible penalties and
state and local taxes. A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. Federal
income tax rate of 35.0% to the Company’s effective income tax
rate is set forth below:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2004 2003 2002
U.S. Federal Income Tax Rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (Decrease) in Taxes
Related to:
State and Local Taxes 4.0 0.8 11.1
Nondeductible Acquisition
Intangibles and Related
Goodwill Impairment (20.8) (29.7) 2.5
Nondeductible Penaley
Expense — 4.1) —
Other 3.6 1.2 (1.1)
Effective Tax Rate 21.8% 3.2% 47.5%

Tax benefits of approximately $1.2 million, $0.4 million and $6.6
million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, were credited directly to goodwill or additional paid-in
capital in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition and changes in stockholders” equity. These tax benefits
related to the vesting of restricted stock units, shares of restricted
stock and the exercise of stock options.

In 2004, the Holding Company generated a tax net operating loss
of $52.5 million. At December 31, 2004, the Holding Company
had available $52.5 million of tax losses that may be carried-back to
2002 and 2003 to apply against available taxable income for those
years, and any excess brought forward for 20 years until utilized.
New York State and City, the principal state and local tax filing
jurisdictions of the Holding Company, only allow a carryforward
for 20 years.
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As a result of the Company’s March 2001 acquisition of Internet
Trading Technologies, Inc. (“ITTI”), net operating loss (“NOL”)
carryforwards totaled $1.6 million as of December 31, 2004 and
2003. The utilization of these NOLs as a tax deduction is limited
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code to $0.2 million
per year. The Company was not allowed to utilize any ITTI NOLs
in 2004 due to the overall tax net loss position of the Holding Com-
pany. These NOLs will begin to expire between 2019 and 2021.

NOTE 8: CAPITAL AND NET LIQUID ASSET
REQUIREMENTS
LaBranche & Co. LLC, as a specialist and member of the NYSE
and AMEX, is subject to the provisions of SEC Rule 15¢3-1 as
adopted and administered by the SEC, NYSE, and AMEX.
LaBranche is required to maintain minimum net capital, as
defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or Xs of aggregare
indebtedness, as defined.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, LaBranche & Co. LLC’s net
capital, as defined under SEC Rule 15¢3-1, was $455.1 million
and $408.7 million, respectively, which exceeded minimum
requirements by $453.2 million and $403.1 million, respectively.
LaBranche & Co. LLC'’s aggregate indebtedness to net capital
ratio was .06 to 1 and .21 to 1, as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The NYSE generally requires its specialist firms to maintain a mini-
mum dollar regulatory capital amount in order to establish that
they can meet, with their own net liquid assets, their position
requirement. As of December 31, 2003, LaBranche & Co. LLC’s
NYSE minimum required dollar amount of net liquid assets, as
defined, was $446.0 million, compared to actual net liquid assets, as
defined, of $473.0 million. Due to the formation and commence-
ment of operations of LSPS in July 2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC’s
and LSPS’ required combined dollar amount of net liquid assets, as
defined, was increased ro $447.0 million. LaBranche & Co. LLC’s
actual net liquid assets, as defined, was $458.7 million as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004. LSPS is not required to perform a net liquid assets cal-
culation because LaBranche & Co. LLC’s actual net liquid assets
exceed the combined net liquid assets requirement of LaBranche

& Co. LLC and LSPS.

The AMEX generally requires its equity specialist firms to maintain
a cash or liquid asset position of the greater of (a) $1 million or (b)
an amount sufficient to assume a position of sixty trading units of
each security in which the equity specialist firm is registered. As of
December 31, 2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC satisfied the AMEX

equity specialist liquid asset requirements.

As a registered broker-dealer and member firm of the NYSE, LFSI is
also subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and the NYSE. Under the alternative method permitted by this
rule, the minimum required net capital is equal to the greater of $1.5
million or 2% of aggregate debit items, as defined. As of December
31, 2004 and 2003, LFSTs net capital, as defined, was $12.5 million
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and $14.4 million, respectively, which exceeded its minimum
requirements by $11.0 million and $12.9 million, respectively.

As a clearing broker-dealer, LFSI is subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-3, as
adopted and administered by the SEC. As of January 4, 2005, to
comply with its December 31, 2004 requirement, cash and U.S.
Treasury Bills in the amount of $0.1 million have been segregated
in a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers
exceeding actual requirements by $0.1 million. As of January 5,
2004, to comply with its December 31, 2003 requirement, cash and
U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $6.2 million were segregated
in a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers
exceeding actual requirements by $4.3 million. In addition, the
PAIB Calculation is computed in order for correspondent firms to
classify their assets held by LFSI as allowable assets in the corre-
spondents’ net capital calculation. As of January 4, 2005, to comply
with its December 31, 2004 requirement, cash and U.S. Treasury
Bills in the amount of $4.4 million have been segregated in a special
reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers exceeding
actual requirements by $3.4 million. As of January 5, 2004, to
comply with its December 31, 2003 requirement, cash and U.S.
Treasury Bills in the arhount of $3.7 million were segregated in a
special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers
exceeding actual requirements by $1.5 million.

As a registered broker-dealer and AMEX member firm, LSP is sub-
ject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the SEC
and AMEX. LSP is required to maintain minimum net capital, as
defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or s of aggregate
indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, LSP’s
net capital, as defined, was $23.8 million and $32.8 million, respec-
tively, which exceeded its minimum requirements by $23.2 million
and $32.6 million, respectively.

LSPS, as a specialist and member of the NYSE, is subject to the
provisions of SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and NYSE. LSPS is required to maintain minimum net capi-
tal, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or s of aggre-
gate indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2004, LSPS’ net
capital, as defined under SEC Rule 15¢3-1, was $4.4 million, which
exceeded its minimum requirement by $4.3 million. LSPS’ aggre-
gate indebtedness to net capital ratio was .13 to 1 as of December

31, 2004.

NOTE 9: SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT

Debt Extinguishmentand Refinancing On May 18, 2004, in con-
nection with the refinancing of cerrain of the Company’s indebted-
ness, the Company repurchased approximately $93.1 million of its
then-outstanding $100.0 million aggregate principal amount 9.5%
senior notes due 2004 (the “2004 Notes”) and approximately
$236.4 million of its then-outstanding $250.0 million aggregate
principal amount 12.0% senior subordinated notes due 2007

(the “2007 Notes” and, together with the 2004 Notes, the “Old
Notes”), and paid for related consents delivered by the holders of the
Old Notes on or prior to April 19, 2004, The aggregate purchase
price paid by the Company for the Old Notes was approximately

$386.9 million, which included the purchase price, premium and
consent payments of approximately $49.0 million in the aggregate,
and accrued but unpaid interest on the Old Notes up to, but not
including, the settlement date. Upon the completion of this debt
repurchase and consent solicitation, the indentures governing the
remaining outstanding Old Notes were stripped of substantially all
restrictive covenants, certain events of default and other related
provisions. In August 2004, the Company repaid $6.9 million of
the 2004 Notes that remained outstanding after the refinancing.
Accordingly, there are no 2004 Notes outstanding as of December
31, 2004.

In order to fund the repurchase of the Old Notes and related con-
sent solicitation, the Company issued $460.0 million aggregate
principal amount of new senior notes (collectively, the “Original
Senior Notes”) to qualified institutional buyers in the United States
pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), and outside the United States pur-
suant to Regulation S under the Securities Act. The Original Senior
Notes consisted of 9.5% Senior Notes due 2009 in the aggregate
principal amount of $200.0 million (the “Original 2009 Notes”)
and 11.0% Senior Notes due 2012 in the aggregate principal
amount of $260.0 million (the “Original 2012 Notes”).

On September 10, 2004, pursuant to a registration rights agreement
between the initial purchaser of the Original Senior Notes and the
Company, the Company offered to exchange (i) its 9.5% Senior
Notes due 2009 that have been registered under the Securities Act
(the “2009 Senior Notes”), for an equal principal amount of out-
standing Original 2009 Notes and (ii) its 11.0% Senior Notes due
2012 that have been registered under the Securities Act (the “2012
Senior Notes,” and together with the 2009 Senior Notes, the
“Senior Notes”), for an equal principal amount of outstanding

Original 2012 Notes.

The exchange offer expired on October 22, 2004, with the holders
of 98.5%, or $197.0 million aggregate principal amount, of Original
2009 Notes having tendered their Original 2009 Notes for exchange,
and the holders of 100.0%, or $260.0 million aggregate principal
amount, of the Original 2012 Notes having tendered their Original
2012 Notes for exchange. The new Senior Notes represent the same
indebtedness as the Original Senior Notes that were exchanged and
have been issued under the same indenture. All subsequent references
to the term “2009 Senior Notes” include the $3.0 million principal
amount of Original 2009 Notes that were not tendered in the
exchange offer and remain outstanding.

The 2009 Senior Notes and 2012 Senior Notes were issued pur-
suant to a new indenture that is similar to the indentures that gov-
erned the Old Notes prior to their amendment in connection with
the May 2004 debrt refinancing. The new indenture includes cer-
tain covenants that, among other things, limit the Company’s
ability to make certain investments, engage in transactions with
stockholders and affiliates, create liens on the Company’s assets and
sell assets or engage in mergers and consolidations, except in accor-
dance with certain specified conditions. In addition, the Company’s




ability to incur additional indebtedness (other than certain “permit-
ted indebtedness™), pay dividends, redeem stock or repurchase sub-
ordinated indebtedness prior to maturity will be limited if the
Company’s consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio is at or below a
threshold of 2.00:1 on and after December 31, 2004. The “consoli-
dated fixed charge coverage ratio” reflects a comparison between

(1) the Company’s consolidated earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization expenses, or “EBITDA,” and

(2) the sum of the Company’s consolidated interest expense and a
tax-effected multiple of any dividend payments that the Company
might make with respect to preferred stock. As of December 31,
2004, the Company’s consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio was
approximately 1.80:1. The indenture governing the Senior Notes
provides for certain exceptions to the limitations on restricted pay-
ments, including, for example, the Company’s July 2004 repurchase
of all then-outstanding shares of its Series B preferred stock, repur-
chase of the Company’s Senior Notes, and any “restricted payments”
up to an aggregate of $15.0 million over the life of the indenture.

In addition, under the indenture governing the Senior Notes, if, at
any time, the Company’s cumulative “restricted payments” since May
18, 2004 generally are greater than (i) the sum of (a) 50.0% of the
Company’s cumulative consolidated net income since July 1, 2004
(o, if such calculation is a loss, minus 100.0% of such loss), and (b)
100.0% of the net cash proceeds received from any issuance or sale of
the Company’s capital stock since July 1, 2004, plus (ii) $15.0 million,
the Company will not be entitled to make a “restricted payment” at
such time. While the Company has not made any restricted pay-
ments since May 18, 2004, the Company cannot be sure if, when or
to what extent this covenant will prevent the Company from making
restricted payments in the future. As of December 31, 2004, since the
Company’s cumulative consolidated net income since July 1, 2004
was negative, the Company was not entitled to make any restricred
payments in excess of the $15.0 million “basket” described above.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes permits the Company to
redeem some or all of the 2009 Senior Notes on or after May 15,
2007 and some or all of the 2012 Senior Notes on or after May 15,
2008 at varying redemption prices, depending on the date of
redemption. In addition, the Company has the option to redeem
up to 33.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2009 Senior
Notes at a redemption price of 109.5% and up to 33.0% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2012 Senior Notes at a redemp-
tion price of 111.0% using the proceeds of certain equity offerings
which the Company may complete on or prior to May 15, 2007.
Under the terms of the indenture, if the Company sells substan-
tially all of its assets or experiences specific kinds of changes in con-
trol, the Company will be required to offer to repurchase Senior
Notes, on a pro rata basis, at a price in cash equal to 101.0% of their
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
date of purchase.

To the extent the Company does not use the net after-tax proceeds
from the sale of its principal non-marketable investment (see Note
4) to repurchase certain of the Company’s secured indebredness,

repay the indebtedness of its subsidiaries or purchase “replacement
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assets,” the Company will be required, on the 361 day following
the closing of this sale transaction, to offer to purchase Senior Notes
in an aggregate principal amount equal to such ner after-tax pro-
ceeds at a price equal to 100.0% of the principal amount of such
Senior Notes.

On November 1, 2004, the Company commenced an “excess pro-
ceeds offer,” as defined, to purchase Senior Notes in the aggregate
principal amount of up to approximately $18.2 million. On
December 1, 2004, this excess proceeds offer expired with approxi-
mately $0.1 million principal amount, including accrued and
unpaid interest, of 2009 Senior Notes having been tendered.

The Company’s short term and long term debr as of December 31,
2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Short Term Debt As of December 31, 2004, the Holding Company
was obligated under a promissory note for $2.0 million assumed in
connection with the RPM acquisition, which was issued to a family
member of a former employee of RPM (the “Promissory Note”). In
June 2004, the Promissory Note was extended for an additional year
by the issuer. This note bore interest at 12.5% per year until June 14,
2003, and bears interest at 8.0% per year through June 14, 2005, its
maturity date. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, interest expense related to the Promissory Note totaled

$0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, short term debt was comprised of (a)
$100.0 million in aggregate principal amount of then-outstanding
2004 Notes, the carrying value of which was approximately $100.0
million, and (b) the Promissory Note. In connection with the Com-
pany’s May 2004 debr refinancing, $0.1 million of the $0.2 million
original discount and the $2.7 million debr issuance cost on the
2004 Notes were accelerated to interest expense. For the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, interest expense related
to the 2004 Notes was approximately $4.2 million, $10.1 million
and $10.1 million, respectively.

Long Term Debt As of December 31, 2004, long term debt was
comprised of (a) $459.9 million aggregate principal amount of
Senior Notes, consisting of the 2009 Senior Notes and the 2012
Senior Notes, (b) $13.6 million aggregate principal amount of
remaining 2007 Notes, the carrying value of which is approxi-
mately $13.5 million, and (c) an $8.0 million promissory note (this
indebtedness accrued interest at the rate of 10,0% per year until
August 7, 2003 and thereafter accrues interest at a rate of 9.0% per
year, payable semiannually, and matures on August 7, 2007). Debt
issuance costs, totaling approximately $5.5 million for the 2009
Senior Notes and approximately $7.2 million for the 2012 Senior
Notes, incurred as a result of the offering of the Senior Notes are
being amortized over the life of the Senior Notes as an adjustment
to interest expense. For the year ended December 31, 2004, interest
expense relared to the Senior Notes totaled $30.3 million. For the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, interest expense
related to the $8.0 million promissory note totaled $0.7 million,
$0.8 million and $0.3 million, respectively,
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As of December 31, 2003, long term debt was comprised of

(a) $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2007 Notes, the
carrying value of which was approximately $247.6 million, and

(b) the aforementioned $8.0 million promissory note. In connec-
tion with the debt refinancing described above, approximately

$2.0 million of the $4.3 million original discount on the 2007
Notes and approximately $3.3 million of the $6.9 million debt
issuance cost on the 2007 Notes were accelerated to interest
expense. For each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, interest expense related to the 2007 Notes was approximately
$18.5 million, $31.5 million and $31.3 million, respectively.

Principal maturities of Jong term debt as of December 31, 2004 are

as follows:

(000’s omitted)

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2005 $ —
2006 —
2007 21,642
2008 —_
2009 199,900
Thereafter 260,000
Total $ 481,542

In October 2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC extended its $200.0 mil-
lion committed line of credit agreement with a bank to October 29,
2005 on the same terms and conditions. The committed line of
credit, which is available to finance LaBranche & Co. LLC's spe-
cialist activities, may be extended by LaBranche & Co. LLC—
subject to the bank’s approval—for additional one-year terms by
giving written notice to the bank at least 30 days prior to the then-
current scheduled termination date. Amounts outstanding under
this credit agreement would be secured by LaBranche & Co. LLC'’s
inventory of specialist stocks and would bear interest at the bank’s
broker loan rate. In order to maintain the availability of funds under
this credit facility, LaBranche & Co. LLC must comply with certain
financial and other covenants. LaBranche & Co. LLC is currently
in compliance with thése covenants.

NOTE 10: SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

LaBranche & Co. LLC is a party to subordinated loan agreements
under which it has incurred indebtedness approved by the NYSE
for inclusion as net capital, as defined. Interest is payable quarterly
at various annual rates. Three agreements representing approxi-
mately $1.9 million mature within the first six months of 2005, four
agreements representing approximately $2.3 million mature within
the last six months of 2005, and three agreements representing

$1.1 million mature within the first six months of 2006. These sub-
ordinated loans, which bear interest ar an annual rate of 10.0%, all
have automatic rollover provisions, and each scheduled maturity
date will be extended an additional year, unless the lender gives
LaBranche & Co. LLC seven months advance notice that the
maturity date will not be extended. As of December 31, 2004, three
agreements representinig $1.9 million have not been extended and
will be paid out within the first six months of 2005. LaBranche &

Co. LLC is entitled to prepay these subordinated loans without
penalty under the terms of the agreements relating thereto. Interest
expense incurred on these and other similar subordinated loan

agreements which have been repaid was approximately $0.5 million
for each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

In 1998, LaBranche & Co. LLC issued five subordinated notes repre-
senting aggregate indebtedness of $15.0 million, which mature in
equal installments of $3.0 million payable on June 3, 2004, 2005,
2006, 2007 and 2008, and bear interest at an annual rate of 7.7%,
payable on a quarterly basis. On June 3, 2004, LaBranche & Co.
LLC repaid $3.0 million of these subordinated notes. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2004, $12.0 million remained outstanding under these subor-
dinated notes, which are senior to all other subordinared notes of
LaBranche & Co. LLC. The agreements covering these subordinated
notes require LaBranche & Co. LLC to comply with certain
covenants that, among other things, restrict the type of business in
which LaBranche & Co. LLC may engage, set certain net capital lev-
els and prohibit restricted payments, as defined. Interest expense
incurred on these subordinated notes for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $1.0 million,

$1.2 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

NOTE 11: STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

On January 21, 2004, the Company completed an exchange offer
pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 3 (a)(9)
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to which the
Company exchanged one share of a newly-created Series B preferred
stock for each share of its then-issued and outstanding Series A pre-
ferred stock. In the exchange offer, all of the approximately 39,186
shares of Series A preferred stock were exchanged by the fourteen
holders of record for shares of the Company’s Series B preferred
stock. Issuance of the newly-created shares of Series B preferred
stock was contingent upon the tender for exchange of 100% of the
then-issued and outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock.

On June 14, 2004, the Company commenced an offer to purchase
any and all of the approximately 39,186 then-outstanding shares of
its Series B preferred stock. On July 12, 2004, the offer expired with
100% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B preferred stock hav-
ing been tendered. On July 13, 2004, the Company purchased all of
the tendered shares at a price of $1,000 per share, plus accrued and
unpaid dividends up to, but not including, the date of purchase for
approximately $42.6 million and all then-outstanding shares of the
Company’s Series B preferred stock were retired. As a result of the
purchase, the Company recorded an expense in the third quarter of
2004 of approximately $0.5 million due to the acceleration of the
discount accretion on the shares that were purchased.

Of the approximately 39,186 then-outstanding shares of the Com-
pany’s Series B preferred stock, approximately 9,760 shares had
been held in escrow in order to secure the indemnification obliga-
tions of the former stockholders of RPM in connection with the
Company’s acquisition of RPM in March 2001. In connection with
the completion of the offer to purchase all then-outstanding shares
of the Company’s Series B preferred stock, this escrow arrangement
was terminated in order to facilitate the Company’s objective of




repurchasing and retiring all of its shares of Series B preferred stock
without forfeiting any material right to indemnification under the
merger agreement governing its acquisition of RPM.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, dividends
declared per common share were $-0-, $0.24 and $-0-, respectively.
In October 2003, the board of directors suspended indefinitely the

payment of dividends.

NOTE 12: EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
The computations of basic and dilured earnings (loss) per share are
set forth below:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
$ (43,780) $(179,389) $87,226

(000’s omitred,
except per share data)

Net Income (Loss)
Less: Preferred Dividends

and Discount Accretion 2,253 4,014 6,941

Numerator for Basic and
Diluted Earnings {Loss)
per Share—Net Income
(Loss) Applicable to
Common Stockholders $ (46,033) $(183,403) §$ 80,285

Denominator for Basic
Earnings (Loss) per
Share—Weighted-Average
Number of Common
Shares Outstanding 59,905 59,614 58,992

Dilutive Shares:

Stock Options —_ — 681
Restricted Stock — — —
Restricted Stock Units —_ — 266

Denominaror for Diluted

Earnings (Loss) per
Share—Weighted-Average
Number of Common
Shares Qutstanding 59,905 59,614 59,939
Basic Earnings (Loss)

per Share $
Diluted Earnings {Loss)

per Share $

077)$ (3.08) $ 1.36

0.77) $ (3.08) $ 134

The exercise prices for options to purchase an aggregate of
1,807,500 shares of common stock exceeded the average market
price of the Company’s common stock for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002. In addition, potential common shares relating to
restricted stock and restricted stock units whose fair value was
below the average market price of the Company’s common stock for
the year ended December 31, 2002 totaled 278,141. Accordingly,
the above calculations of diluted earnings (loss) per share do not
include the antidilutive effect of these stock-based awards. Potential
common shares relating to options totaling 2,319,167 and
3,626,891 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, and to restricted stock and restricted stock units total-

ing 574,353 and 295,945 for the years ended December 31, 2004
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and 2003, respectively, were excluded from the diluted loss per
share calculation for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
because their effect was antidilutive.

NOTE 13: ACQUISITIONS

Effective October 24, 2002, the Holding Company acquired all the
outstanding stock of Hochstin & Company, Inc. (“Hochstin™),
which conducted a rights specialist and floor brokerage business on
the NYSE, for $7.8 million in cash, of which $3.6 million was paid at
the closing and the remainder is to be, or was, paid by the Holding
Company as follows: (a) $1.0 million on each of October 24, 2003,
2004 and 2005, and (b) $1.2 million on October 24, 2007, although
the final payment may be reduced to $200,000 if the employment
with LESI of a certain former employee of Hochstin is either termi-
nated for cause by LFSI or is terminated voluntarily by such employee
prior to October 24, 2007. The acquisition was accounted for under
the purchase method of accounting. The excess of purchase price
over fair value of net tangible assets of approximately $4.6 million was
allocated to goodwill. The results of operations formetly conducted
by Hochstin have been included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements since October 24, 2002.

On April 22, 2003, LSP formed an options specialist joint account
on the AMEX (the “Joint Account”) with Botta Capital Manage-
ment, LLC (“Botta”). LSP contributed $1.5 million of capital for
the operation of the Joint Account and manages the Joint Account’s
business on the trading floor of the AMEX. Botta contributed its
right to act as specialist in certain AMEX option listings. Annual
net profits of the Joint Account generated from specialist activities
in the Joint Account’s AMEX listed options are shared by LSP and
Botta on a 66%/34% basis, respectively, and LSP bears 100% of
any annual net losses. After the fourth anniversary of the formation
of the Joint Account, Botta will no longer have any interest in the
Joint Account or the AMEX oprtion listings it contributed to the
Joint Account. The results of the Joint Account have been included
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since April 22,
2003. Botta’s share of the net assets and net income of the Joint
Account are classified as minority interest on the accompanying
2004 and 2003 consolidated statements of financial condition and
statements of operations.

NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLANS

Equity Incentive Plan The Company sponsors an Equity Incentive
Plan (“EIP”) which provides for grants of incentive stock options,
nonqualified stock options, restricted shares of common stock,
restricted stock units, unrestricted shares and stock appreciation
rights. The Company has a total of 7,687,500 shares of common
stock reserved for issuance under the EIP, of which 3,550,524
shares remain available for issuance as of December 31, 2004. The
maximum number of shares of common stock with respect to
which options, restricted stock, restricted stock units or other
equity-based awards may be granted under the EIP during any
calendar year to any employee may not exceed 500,000 shares,
subject to adjustment upon certain corporate transactions.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units The Company has

granted restricted stock units {(“RSUs”) to employees in connection
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with its initial public offering and subsequently as stock-based com-
pensation. The Company has granted restricted stock (“RS”) as
part of employment contracts and in connection with certain
acquisitions. In general, both the restricted stock units and the
restricted stock awards vest in one to five annual installments on the
anniversary of the date of grant. Compensation expense for all of
these RS and RSU awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the respective vesting periods. In addition, all of these awards are
subject to the employees’ continuing service with the Company and
other restrictions. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003

of purchase accounting acquisitions were fully vested and exercis-
able on the grant date. Pursuant to APB No. 25, no compensation
expense was recognized for any of these option grants since, on the
date of grant, these options had no intrinsic value. In addition,
these option grants will generally expire ten years from the date of
grant, unless sooner terminated or exercised.

The following table provides informarion about options to purchase
the Company’s common stock:

and 2002, the Company recorded compensation expense related to Weighted
these awards, net of forfeitures, and a credit to additional paid-in- Average
capiral, of $3.1 million; $3.4 million and $3.1 million, respectively. Number  Exercise Price
of Shares per Share
The following table provides information about grants of RS Oprtions Outstanding as of
and RSUs: December 31, 2001 2,833,559 $13.90
Options Granted 1,545,000 34.64
Number of Shares Options Exercised (705,890) 12.03
RS and RSUs Outstanding as of December 31, 2001 1,026,214 Options Forfeited — -
Granted 20,000 Options Outstanding as of
Vested (308,436) December 31, 2002 3,672,669 $22.98
Forfeited (193,660)  Options Granted — —
RS and RSUs Outstanding as of December 31, 2002 544,118 Options Exercised (15,778) 13.67
Granted 46,000 Options Forfeited (30,000) 35.00
Vested (289,833) Options Outstanding as of
Forfeited (4,340) December 31, 2003 3,626,891 $22.92
RS and RSUs Outstanding as of December 31, 2003 295,945 Options Granted — —
Granted 600,000 Options Exercised (493,890) 2.78
Vested (236,082)  Options Forfeited (813,834) 26.44
Forfeited (85,510)  Options Outstanding as of
RS and RSUs Outstanding as of December 31, 2004 574,353 December 31, 2004 2,319,167 $25.97
Options Exercisable as of:
Stock Options In general, most of the stock options granted to December 31, 2002 1,977,669 $12.42
employees as stock-based compensation vest and become exercis- December 31, 2003 2,074,391 13.76
able in annual installments over three years. Options granted as part December 31, 2004 1,632,500 $22.18
The following rable summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2004:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Weighted
Range of Number Remaining  Exercise Price Number Average
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life per Share Exercisable  Exercise Price
$ 11.00-$20.99 1,014,167 492 $13.93 1,014,167 $13.93
21.00- 30.99 75,000 7.82 27.50 75,000 27.50
$31.00—-$40.99 1,230,000 6.89 $35.81 543,333 $36.84
2,319,167 1,632,500

Senior Executive Bonus Plan The Senior Executive Bonus Plan,
adopted in May 2003, is intended to provide for the payment to
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and next four most highly
compensated executive officers of bonuses which are exempt from
the $1.0 million deduction limitation imposed by Section 162 (m)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Bonuses are

payable in cash and/or equity-based awards under the Company’s
EIP. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, no bonuses
were paid under this plan. However, for the year ended December
31, 2004, these executive officers were awarded cash bonuses
totaling approximately $1.9 million.




NOTE 15: RETIREMENT PLAN
The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan (the
“Plan”) that is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement

Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”).

All employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after they have
completed three months of service. Participants are entitled to con-
tribute voluntarily in an amount equal to not less than 1% and not
more than 609 of their annual pre-tax compensation, up to the
maximum amount permitted under Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) regulations for the applicable Plan year. The Company, act-
ing in its sole discretion, can declare and make employer matching
contributions and additional voluntary contributions for all eligible
employees who have completed one year of service, and/or have
been credited with 1,000 hours of service. During the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company contributed
approximately $1.1 million, $1.0 million and $1.2 million, respec-
tively, as employer matching contributions to the Plan, and approx-
imately $4.2 million in 2002 as additional voluntary contributions.
There were no additional voluntary contributions in 2004 or 2003.

NOTE 16: DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Substantially all the Company’s assets and liabilities are carried at

fair value or contracted amounts, which approximate fair value.

The fair value of fixed rate debt, tn millions, is as follows:

As of December 31,
2004 2003

Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

2004 Notes — — $100.0 $101.0
2007 Notes $ 13.6 $ 146 $247.6  $250.0
2009 Senior Notes $1999  $202.9 — —
2012 Senior Notes $260.0 $2769 — —
Other $ 273 $ 274 $ 303 $§ 331

For 2004, the fair value of the 2007 Notes was determined using
current market rates to discount their cash flow as of December 31,
2004, and the fair values of the 2009 Senior Notes and 2012 Senior
Notes were determined based upon their respective market values as
of December 31, 2004. For 2003, the fair values of the 2004 Notes
and 2007 Notes were determined based upon their respective mar-
ket values as of December 31, 2003. For both fiscal years, the fair
value of the fixed rate and other notes was determined using current
market rates to discount their cash Hows.

NOTE 17: BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Segment information is presented in accordance with SFAS No.
131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” The Company’s business segments are based upon
the nature of the financial services provided, their revenue source
and the Company’s management organization.

The Company’s Specialist segment operates as a specialist in equi-
ties and rights listed on the NYSE, as a specialist in equities,
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options, ETFs, and futures on several exchanges, as well as a mar-
ket-maker in ETFs, futures and options on several exchanges. This
segment also provides support services for the NYSE specialist
activities. The Specialist segment currently includes the operations
of LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP, LSPS, LABDR and BV since they

share similar economic characteristics.

The Company’s Execution and Clearing segment provides securi-
ties execution, securities clearing and other related services to its
own customers and customers of introducing brokers. This segment
also provides direct-access floor brokerage services to institutional
customers. The Execution and Clearing segment currently includes
the operations of LESL

Revenues and expenses directly associated with each segment are
included in determining its operating results. Other expenses,
including corporate overhead, which are not directly attributable to
a particular segment, generally are allocated to each segment based
on its resource usage levels or other appropriate measures. Interest
with respect to the Senior Notes, certain administrative expenses,
corporate overhead expenses and other sources of revenues are not
specifically allocated by management when reviewing the Com-
pany’s segments’ performance, and appear in the “Other” section.
Selected financial information for each segment is set forth below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000’s omitted): 2004 2003 2002
Specialist Segment:
Revenues $ 245,023 § 256,583 $ 401,169
Operating Expenses 137,150 133,016 164,367
Goodwill Impairment 37,600 166,250 —
Exchange Memberships

Impairment 16,300 - —
Restitution and Fines — 63,519 —
Depreciation and

Amortization Expense 11,649 11,715 12,337
Income (Loss) Before

Minority Interest

and Taxes 42,324  (117,917) 224,465
Segment Goodwill 250,569 289,593 466,546

Segment Assets $1,849,108 $ 1,785,098 $1,726,935

Execution and Clearing

Segment:
Revenues $ 48,016 $ 47,909 $ 44,565
Operating Expenses 52,357 56,285 53,297
Goodwill Impairment — 4,052 —
Exchange Memberships

Impairment 2,027 515 —
Depreciation and

Amortization Expense 470 1,008 1,093
Loss Before Minority

Interest and Taxes (6,838) (13,951) (9,825)
Segment Goodwill — — 4,052
Segment Assets $ 54724 $ 59,927 $ 88,666




54 LaBranche & Co Inc. 2004 Annual Report

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000’s omirted): 2004 2003 2002
Other :
Revenues $ 26,008 § 1,497 $ 7,111
Operating Expenses 67,832 54,623 55,611
Debt Repurchase

Premium 49,029 — —

Depreciation and
Amortization Expense 102 80 16
Loss Before Minority

Interest and Taxes (90,955) (53,2006) (48,516)

Segment Assets 0§ 151,265 $ 118,065 $ 97,201
Total:
Revenues $ 319,047 $ 305,989 $ 452,845
Operating Expenses 257,339 243,924 273,275
Goodwill Impairment 37,600 170,302 —
Exchange Memberships

Impairment 18,327 515 —
Debt Repurchase

Premium 49,029 — —
Restitution and Fines — 63,519 —
Depreciation and

Amortization Expense 12,221 12,803 13,446
Income (Loss) Before

Minority Interest

and Taxes (55,469)  (185,074) 166,124
Goodwill 250,569 289,593 470,598
Total Assets $2,055,097 $1,963,090 $1,912,802

(1) Other is comprised primarily of the interest on the Holding Company’s
indebredness, unallocated corporate administrative expenses, including legal costs,
unallocated revenues (primarily gains from non-marketable investments and interest
income), and elimination entries.

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT AND
OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

As specialists and market-makers on the NYSE, AMEX, NYBOT,

PHLX and other exchanges, LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP and LSPS

are engaged in various securities trading and lending activities. In

connection with their specialist activities, LaBranche & Co. LLC,

LSP and LSPS assume positions in stocks for which they are

responsible. LaBranche 8 Co. LLC, LSP and LSPS are exposed to

credit risk associated with the nonperformance of counterparties in
fulfilling their contractual obligations pursuant to these securities
transactions, and they are also exposed to market risk associated
with the sale of securities sold but not yet purchased, which can be
directly impacted by volatile trading on the NYSE, AMEX and
other exchanges. Additionally, in the event of nonperformance and
unfavorable market price movements, LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP
and LSPS may be required to purchase or sell financial instruments,
which may result in a loss.

The Company enters into collateralized financing agreements in
which it extends short term credit to major financial institutions.
The Company controls access to the collateral pledged by the coun-
terparties, which generally consists of U.S. equity and government
securities. The value and adequacy of the collateral are continually
monitored. Consequently, the risk of credit loss from counterpar-
ties’ failure to perform in connection with collateralized lending
activities is minimal.

In addition, LESI, through the normal course of business, enters
into various securities transactions as agent. The execution, settle-
ment and financing of those transactions can result in off-balance
sheet risk and concentration of credit risk. LFSI’s execution and
clearing activities involve settlement and financing of various cus-
tomer securities transactions on a cash or margin basis. These activ-
ities may expose LESI to off-balance sheet risk in the event the
customer or other broker is unable to fulfill its contractual obliga-
tions and LFST has to purchase or sell securities at a loss. For margin
transactions, LFSI may be exposed to significant off-balance sheet
risk in the event margin requirements are not sufficient to fully
cover losses that customers may incur in their accounts.

LFSI seeks to control the risks associated with customer activities by
requiring customers to maintain margin collateral in compliance
with various regulatory and internal guidelines. LESI monitors mar-
gin levels daily and pursuant to such guidelines, requires customers
to deposit additional collateral or reduce positions when necessary.

LFST is engaged in various brokerage activities in which its counter-
parties primarily include broker-dealers, banks and other financial
institutions. LFSI may be exposed to the risk of default, which
depends on the creditworthiness of the counterparty. It is LESIs pol-
icy to review, as necessary, the credit standing of each counterparty
with which it conducts business.

LSP and LSPS use derivative financial instruments, including
exchange-traded options, ETFs and domestic and foreign futures
contracts, for trading purposes and to financially hedge other posi-
tions or transactions as part of their specialist and market-making
businesses and overall risk management process. These financial
instruments subject LSP and LSPS to varying degrees of market,
credit and foreign exchange risk. LSP and LSPS record their deriva-
tive trading activities at market value, with corresponding gains or
losses recorded in “Net gain on principal transactions.” Gains or
losses from foreign currency transactions are also recorded in “Net
gain on principal transactions.” In order to minimize risk, manage-
ment continually monitors positions, gain and loss, volatility and
other standard risk measures on a real-time basis and communicates
its risk tolerance to LSP’s and LSPS’ traders.




NOTE 19: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies

Specialist Trading Investigations. On March 30, 2004, LaBranche &
Co. LLC and other NYSE specialist firms entered into agreements
with the SEC and the NYSE to settle the SEC and NYSE investiga-
tions concerning alleged improper specialist trading practices by
specialists on the NYSE. Pursuanct to the settlement, LaBranche &
Co. LLC paid $41.6 million in restitution and $21.9 million in a
civil money penalty, which the Company accrued for as of Decem-
ber 31, 2003, in connection with trades that occurred during the
years 1999 through 2003 and has agreed to undertakings stated in
the SEC’s order. Pursuant to the settlement, LaBranche & Co. LLC
consented, without admitting or denying any wrongdoing, to an
SEC order instituting administrative cease-and-desist proceedings,
making findings, and imposing remedial sanctions and a cease-and-
desist order. The SEC's findings, neither admitted nor denied,
include violations by LaBranche & Co. LLC of Section 11 (b) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 11b-1 promulgated thereunder, NYSE Rules
104, 92, 123B, 401 and 342, and Section 15 (b){(4}(E) of the
Exchange Act. The Section 15 (b)(4)(E) finding includes a failure
reasonably to supervise individual specialists who, the finding states,
violated Section 10 (b} of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promul-
gated thereunder with respect to transactions in six particular stocks.
The Company has continued to receive requests for information
from the SEC and also has received requests for information from
the United States Artorney’s Office for the Southern District of New
York as part of an industry-wide investigation relating to activities of
NYSE floor specialists in recent years. The Company is cooperating
with the requests.

In re LaBranche Securities Litigation. On or about October 16, 2003
through December 16, 2003, nine purported class action lawsuits
were filed by purchasers of the Company’s common stock in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York,
including Sofran v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 8201,
Semon v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 8255, Haug v.
LaBranche & Co. Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 8265, Labul v. LaBranche
& Co Inc., etal., No. 03 CV 8365, Murphy v. LaBranche & Co
Inc., eral., No. 03 CV 8462, Strain v. LaBranche & Co Inc.,, etal.,
No. 03 CV 8509, Yopp v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03 CV
8783, Ferris v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 8806, and
Levin v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 8918. On March
22, 2004, the court consolidated these lawsuits under the caption
In re LaBranche Securities Litigation, No. 03 CV 8201. The court
named the following lead plaintiffs: Anchony Johnson, Clyde
Farmer, Edwin Walchall, Donald Stahl and City of Harper Woods

Retirement System.

On June 7, 2004, plaintiffs filed a Consolidated Class Action Com-
plaint. On July 12, 2004, plaintiffs filed a Corrected Consolidated
Class Action Complaint. Plaintiffs allege that they represent a class
consisting of persons and entities that purchased or other-wise
acquired the Company’s common stock during the period beginning
on August 19, 1999 and concluding on October 15, 2003. Plaintiffs
allege that the Company, LaBranche & Co. LLC, and certain past or
present officers and/or directors of the Company and/or LaBranche
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& Co. LLC, including George M.L. LaBranche, IV, William ].
Burke, 111, James G. Gallagher, Alfred O. Hayward, Jr., Robert M.
Murphy and Harvey S. Traison, violated Section 10 (b) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder and Section
20 (a) of the Exchange Act by failing to disclose improper specialist
trading,. Plaintiffs also allege that two other past or present officers
and/or directors of the Company and/or LaBranche & Co. LLC.,,

S. Lawrence Prendergast and George E. Robb, Jr., also violated
Section 20 (a) of the Exchange Act. Plaintiffs seek unspecified money
damages, attorneys’ fees and reimbursement of expenses.

In re NYSE Specialists Securities Litigation. On or about October 16,
2003 through December 16, 2003, four purported class action law-
suits were brought by persons or entities who purchased and/or sold
shares of stocks of NYSE-listed companies for which LaBranche &
Co. LLC and any other NYSE specialist firm acted as specialist,
including Pirelli v. LaBranche & Co Inc., etal,, No. 03 CV 8264,
Marcus v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 8521, Empirev.
LaBranche & Co Inc,, et al., No. 03 CV 8935, and the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) v. The New York
Stock Exchange, Inc., et al., No. 03 CV 9968. On March 11, 2004,
a fifth action asserting similar claims, Rosenbaum Partners, LP v.
The New York Stock Exchange, Inc., et al., No. 04 CV 2038, was
filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York by an individual plaintiff who does not allege to repre-
sent a class. On May 27, 2004, the court consolidated these lawsuits
under the caption In re NYSE Specialists Securities Lirigation, No.
CV 8264. The court named the following lead plaintiffs: California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) and Empire
Programs, Inc.

On September 15, 2004, plaintiffs filed a Consolidated Complaint
for Violation of the Federal Securities Laws and Breach of Fiduciary
Duty alleging that they represent a class consisting of all public
investors who purchased and/or sold shares of stock listed on the
NYSE from October 17, 1998 to Ocrober 15, 2003. Plaintiffs allege
that the Company, LaBranche & Co. LLC, Mr. LaBranche and
other NYSE specialist firms and their respective parents and afhli-
ates violated Section 10 (b), Rule 10b-5 and Section 20 (a) by failing
to disclose improper specialist trading, improperly profiting on pur-
chases and/or sales of NYSE securities, and breaching and/or aiding
and abetting breaches of fiduciary duty. Plaintiffs also name the
NYSE as a defendant. Plaintiffs seek unspecified money damages,
restitution, forfeiture of fees, commissions and other compensation,
equitable and/or injunctive relief, including an accounting of and
the imposition of a constructive trust and/or asset freeze on trading
proceeds, and attorneys’ fees and reimbursement of expenses.

Last Atlantis and Rule. On January 20, 2004, five entities that
allege chat they are purchasers and sellets of options commenced an
action in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Illinois, Last Atlantis Capital LLC v. Chicago Board of Options
Exchange, Inc., et al., No. 04 C 0397, against four national securi-
ties exchanges (the American Stock Exchange, the Chicago Board
Options Exchange, the Philadelphia Stock Exchange and Pacific

Exchange) and 35 alleged securities brokers and/or dealers, includ-
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ing LSP, who, plaintiffs allege, made markets in options on the
named exchanges. Plaintiffs allege that the Company and LSP con-
spired with other defendants by allegedly failing to execute orders,
canceling orders, and refusing to cancel orders allegedly submitted
by plaintiffs for the purchase and sale of options. Plaintiffs allege
violations of federal antitrust laws (Section 1 of the Sherman Act),
and securities law (Section 10 (b) of the Exchange Act and Rule
10b-5), breach of contract, common law fraud, breach of fiduciary
duty, violations of an Illinois consumer fraud and deceptive business
practices statute, and tortious interference with plaintiffs’ business.
Injunctive relief and damages (including punitive damages) in an
unspecified amount are sought. On January 28, 2005, an individ-
ual represented by the same counsel who represent the plaintiffs in
the Last Atlantis case commenced a substantially similar action in
the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illi-
nois, Rule v. Chicago Board of Options Exchange, Inc., et al., No.
05 C 0539, making substantially the same allegations and seeking
the same relief againstthe same defendants, including the Com-
pany and LSP. To our knowledge, the complaint in the Rule case
has not been served.

NASD/AMEX Notice of Disciplinary Action. On December 15,
2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC received a notice from the NASD
Amex Regulation Division stating a preliminary determination has
been made by the NASD Amex Regulation Division’s staff to seek
disciplinary action against LaBranche & Co. LLC for violations of
certain federal securities laws and the Amex Constitution and
Rules, including Sections 10 (b), 9A and 17 (a) of the Exchange Act,
in connection with manual book freezes effected in one of
LaBranche & Co. LLC’s Amex specialist stocks during the period
March 8, 2004 through October 21, 2004. Prior to receiving this
notice, LaBranche & Co. LLC had determined that the individual
specialist responsible for the book freezes failed to adhere to com-
pany policy and had terminated that employee. LaBranche & Co.
LLC has submitted a response to the staff of the NASD Amex Reg-
ulation Division setting forth the reasons why disciplinary action
should not be brought against it and are cooperating with the
INASD Amex Regulation Division in this matter.

The Company believés that the claims asserted against it by the
plaintiffs in the pending proceedings described above are without
merit, and the Company denies all allegations of wrongdoing.
There can be no assurance, however, as to the outcome or timing
of the resolution of these proceedings. The Company, therefore, is
unable to estimate the amount or potential range of any loss that
may arise out of these proceedings. The range of possible resolu-
tions could include determinations and judgments against the
Company or its subsidiaries or settlements that could require sub-
stantial payments by the Company that could have 2 material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

In addition to the proceedings described above, the Company and
its operating subsidiaries have been the target, from time to time, of
various claims and lawsuits incidental to the ordinary course of their
businesses, including, in particular, three separate employment dis-
crimination proceedings currently pending against LaBranche &
Co. LLC before the United States Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission. While the ultimate outcome of those claims and law-
suits which currently are pending cannot be predicted with cer-
tainty, the Company believes, based on its understanding of the facts
of these proceedings, that their ultimate resolution will not, in the
aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Commitments The Company has entered into long-term non-can-
celable operating lease agreements for certain office space and
equipment, which expire at various dates through 2012. Certain
lease agreements contain escalation clauses providing for increased
rental payments based on increases in maintenance charges and real
estate taxes. Minimum future rental commitments under existing
non-cancelable leases for office space and equipment are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2005 $2,729,677
2006 1,923,665
2007 1,585,105
2008 195,878
2009 72,292
Thereafter 154,017
Tortal $ 6,660,634

NOTE 20: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 20, 2005, the Company granted 700,000 RSUs to
employees under the EIP. One third of these RSUs will vest in full
on the second anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining
two-thirds will vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant,
subject to the grantees remaining in the continuous employ of the
Company through the vesting date.

In January 2005, LaBranche Structured Products Europe Limited
(“LSPE”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of LSE, was organized in the
United Kingdom for the purpose of becoming a market-maker for
ETFs traded on the London Stock Exchange and Eurex and
Euronexr exchanges. LSPE has yet to commence operations or
obtain local regulatory approval.
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